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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Ari zona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Siting
Comm ttee at Phoeni x, Arizona, commrencing at 10:00 a.m

on February 9, 2026.

BEFORE: ADAM STAFFORD, Chai r man

CLI NT CHANDLER, Arizona Departnent of Wter
Resour ces

M CHAEL COMSTOCK, Arizona Corporation Conmmi ssion

LEONARD C. DRAGO, Departnent of Environnmental
Quality

SAL DDCICC O, Incorporated Cities and Towns

DOUG.AS FANT, GCeneral Public

ROVAN FONTES, Counti es
(Vi deoconf erence appear ance.)

Nl COLE HI LL, Governor's Ofice of Energy Policy

R DAVI D KRYDER, Agriculture Interests

MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, General Public

GABRI ELA SAUCEDO MERCER, General Public

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

Matt Derstine

SNELL & W LMER

One East Washi ngton Street
Suite 2700

Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004

For the Intervenor Apache County:
Chri st opher Resare
APACHE COUNTY
70 South 3rd West
St. Johns, Arizona 85936
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For the Intervenor M chael Anabl e:
M chael Anabl e
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CHWN STAFFORD: Let's go on the record.

Now is the tinme set for the renand hearing on the
application of CG Apache County Wnd, LLC, and CG Apache
County Sol ar, LLC, for a Certificate of Environnental
Conpatibility, Docket Nunbers L-21364A-25-0198-00250 and
L- 21365A- 25- 0198- 00250, or Line Siting Case 250.

Pursuant to notice given, as provided by
law, the commttee held public hearings on the
application from Cctober 20th through October 23rd, 2025,
in Pinetop, Arizona, in conformance with the requirenents
of Arizona Revised Statutes 40-360, et sequitur.

The comm ttee consi dered the application,
the testinony, and exhibits presented by the applicants,
the five limted appearance statenents, and the comments
of the public. The commttee wei ghed the evidence in the
record in |light of the factors in ARS 40-360.06 and voted
8 to 2 to grant the CEC for the project.

I n Deci si on Nunber 81582, the Conm ssion
remanded this matter back to the commttee for additional
public, county, and nunicipal input into the record.

The remand to the commttee is not de novo,
nmeani ng the applicants do not have to re-present their
evi dence. The scope of today's hearing is limted to the
taki ng and consi derati on of additional evidence on county
and muni ci pal | and use plans, concerns, and inpacts in
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Apache County related to the project. To be clear, the
project that is the subject of today's hearing is the
transm ssion |ine only.

The commttee and the Comm ssion do not
have jurisdiction over the wind, solar, and storage
facilities. Let's take roll call of the nenbers.

Menber Drago?

MEMBER DRAGO  Present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Hill?

MEMBER HI LL: Present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Constock?

MEMBER COMSTOCK:  Present.

CHWN STAFFORD:. Menber Little?

MEMBER LI TTLE: Present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Di G cci 0?

MEMBER Di CI CCI O  Here.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Mercer?

MEMBER MERCER  Present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Kryder?

MEMBER KRYDER: Her e.

CHWN STAFFORD: And | would like to wel cone
our newest nenber, Menber Chandl er.

MEMBER CHANDLER: Present. Thank you,
M. Chair man.

CHWN STAFFORD: Let's take appearances of

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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the parties and potential parties, starting with the
appl i cant.

M. Derstine.

MR, DERSTI NE: Good norning, M. Chairnan,
Menmbers of the Committee, Matt Derstine appearing on
behal f of the Applicant, CG Apache County Wnd and
CG Apache County Sol ar, LLC.

CHWN STAFFORD: And M. Anabl e?

MR ANABLE: Yes, sir.

CHWN STAFFORD: Do you have a m crophone?

MR ANABLE: | don't, but I do now.

Hel | 0?

Hel | 0?

CHWN STAFFORD: There you go.

And you are representing yourself?

MR ANABLE: Yes, sir.

CHWN STAFFORD: And you' ve requested
intervention in this matter?

MR ANABLE: Yes, sir.

CHWN STAFFORD: And from Apache County?

MR, RESARE: Thank you, M. Chairnan. ' m
Chris Resare for Apache County.

MEMBER KRYDER: |'m sorry, |'mnot catching
you. Can you put that on again, please.

MR. RESARE: Chris Resare wth Apache

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 250 VOLUMEYV 02/09/2026

County.

MEMBER KRYDER  Thank you,

sir.

778

CHWN STAFFORD: And the County al so w shes

to becone a party to this matter?

MR RESARE: Yes, M. Chairman.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right.

we wll vote on whether to allow M. Anabl e and Apache

County to participate as parties.

Now, Menbers,

Dol need to do a roll call vote or

get the notion?

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chai rman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

You need to get close to the m crophone,

don't think the court reporter can hear you.

MEMBER LI TTLE: As you and ot hers know,

can |

was not able to attend the original hearing for this

mat ter.

MEMBER KRYDER: Toby, | can't hear you.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Is that better?

MEMBER KRYDER: No.

MEMBER LI TTLE: It says it's on. Says it's
off. It's on.

THE REPORTER: That was better. That was
better.

MEMBER LI TTLE: However,

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC
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transcript, which was no nean feat, believe ne, and |
reviewed all the filings in the docket.

Though it woul d appear that the applicant
has net the letter of the law for the gen-tie, there have
been a nunber of questions raised by the public and
others that | would |like to give the applicant the
opportunity to respond to.

And, in addition, the FAA approval has
expired, it's ny understanding. | think we owe it to the
citizens of Arizona to investigate the issues fully, and
that includes allowing the public to participate fully.

| nove that we allow M. Anable to be a
partici pant --

MEMBER Di CI CCI O  Second.

MEMBER LI TTLE: -- and party to.

CHWN STAFFORD: Further di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFORD: All in favor say aye.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN STAFFORD:. (QOpposed?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFORD: Hearing none, M. Anable is
made a party.

Can | get a notion to nmake Apache County a
party to the case?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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MEMBER HI LL: So noved.

MEMBER MERCER: Second.

CHWN STAFFORD: Further di scussion?

(No response.)

CHW STAFFCORD: All in favor say aye.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN STAFFORD:. (QOpposed?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFORD: Hearing none, Apache County
is also made a party to the case.

MEMBER MERCER: M. Chairman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Mercer.

MEMBER MERCER: Menmber Fant just joi ned us.

CHWN STAFFORD: Onh, yes. Wl cone, Menber

Fant .

Vel cone, Menber Fant.

MEMBER FANT: Present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Al right. Now, we al so
have five additional |limted appearance statenents.
W'l mark those as, the one from Linda Weiland wll be

mar ked as Exhibit LW2. The appearance from Monica
Boehning will be marked as Exhibit MB-2. The limted
appearance fromthe Town of Springerville will be marked
as Exhibit TS-1. The Town of Eagar's limted appearance
statement wll be marked as Exhibit TE-2. And then the
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statenent from Apache Natural Resource Conservation
District will be marked as Exhi bit ANRC 1.

Now, the commttee will now take additional
public coment on the application. Each commenter wll
have three minutes. This matter was remanded to the
commttee for additional public, county, and nunici pal
I nput .

Accordingly, we will take only comment from
per sons who have not previously nade public coment on
this matter before the commttee. This is not an
opportunity for the public to ask questions of the
commttee or the applicant. It is the tine for the
public to voice their concerns and have t hem becone part
of the record.

| remind everyone that the ex parte rules
are in effect. The nenbers cannot discuss the nerits of
the case with the public or parties off the record.
However, the public may ask and the applicant may answer
questions fromthe public off the record.

We'l|l begin taking public comment fromthe
people in the room Up first we have Mark Cardenas.

MR CARDENAS: Chairnman Stafford, Honorable
Menmbers of the Line Siting Committee, thank you for the
opportunity to speak today. Mark Cardenas here
representing the Western States Carpenters.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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This project represents exactly the kind of
responsi bl e energy devel opnent Arizona needs. It
delivers reliable, affordable power, while creating
good- payi ng construction jobs and | ong-term nai nt enance
positions in Apache County, in an area that needs
econom ¢ opportunity, not barriers to investnent. And
for our tribal communities in the county, which continue
to face unacceptably hi gh unenpl oynent, projects |ike
this create real pathways to work, skilled construction
j obs, operations careers, contracting opportunities that
allow tribal nenbers to stay, work, and build futures in
their own conmunity.

In addition to that, we al so represent --
we' re now speaki ng on behalf of one of those tribes. W
do represent one of the tribes that's in the county, and
we have sone experience in that area with their needs and
trying to solve sone of those problens in that tribe.

Just as inportant, this project is snart
for Arizona's water future. Wnd and sol ar use al nbst no
wat er, protecting scarce resources for ranchers, farners,
and residents, particularly critical in northeastern
Arizona. |It's proven this project strengthens energy
reliability, diversifies our grid, and keeps electricity
affordable for famlies and busi nesses across the state.

It al so ensures that Apache County renmins

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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conpetitive rather than watching jobs and investnent and
peopl e nove el sewhere. This is a chance to support | ocal
wor kers, tribal comunities, and Arizona's |long-term
energy security, and | respectfully urge your approval.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Cesar Corral

MR. CORRAL: Good norning, Chairnman
Stafford, Menbers of the Conmmttee. Thank you for the
opportunity to speak today.

My nane is Cesar Corral, and |I'm here
representing thousands of skilled construction workers to
speak in support of the Lava |Interconnection Project and
the inportant role it can play for Apache County and
Ari zona's energy future.

This project represents real economc
opportunity. It will support good-paying jobs and
| ong-term mai nt enance work, while al so generating
significant |ocal tax revenue to help fund school s,
roads, and energency services, W thout raising taxes on
| ocal famlies. It also supports |andowners in rural
comuni ties by creating |ong-terminvestnent and
stability.

Just as inportant, this project supports
responsi bl e energy devel opnent in a region where water is

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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scarce. Wnd and sol ar generati on connected through
projects like Lava require mninmal water, especially
conpared to traditional power plants that consune
mllions of gallons each year.

That neans nore water stays avail able for
ranchers, farners, and residents of the area. The Lava
| nt erconnection Project al so strengthens energy
reliability and i ndependence by i nproving access to
honme-grown Arizona energy and hel pi ng diversify our power
supply, reducing exposure to fuel price spikes and supply
di srupti ons.

| f Apache County adopts restrictive
policies that block renewabl e devel opnent, we risk |osing
projects like this, and the jobs and the revenue and the
| ong-term benefits that come with them | respectfully
urge the Conm ssion to support the Lava | nterconnection
Project and policies that keep Apache County open for
responsi bl e i nvest nent.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Richard Sigler.

MR SIGER Hello, Comm ssioner, Staff
and - -

CHWN STAFFORD: C oser to the m crophone,
pl ease.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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MR SIGER Hello, Chairman Stafford and
fell ow conm ssioners. Thank you for allowng ne to tal k

for a m nute.

| just wanted to talk about -- | wanted to
tal k about I amin support of the project. | wanted to
tal k about the history of -- of the conpany, the parent

conmpany, Repsol. And sonething that was put in the
docket, a -- a conplaint that was put, that conpl aint
about them having to pay $150 million or $130 million in
fines. And | wanted to address that in 2013 Repsol paid
$65 mllion and YPF also paid $65 mllion in fines for an
oil spill.

Now, this was done by the New Jersey
Departnent of Environnental Protection, and the -- what
t he case was was there was a -- a chemi cal plant |eak
over fromthe period of 1940s through the '60s, they
| eaked over dioxins into the river, into the Passaic
Ri ver in New Jersey.

Ckay. Wihat | want to say is Repsol
inherited this liability when it purchased YPF in 1995,
after it happened, which had previously purchased Mass's
Ener gy Corporation, which was responsible for the
liability.

So | just wanted to address that and make
that clear. Now, they do have a history, a recent

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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history, they had an oil spill in -- at La Panpilla
refinery in Peru, and it was the Peruvian governnent said
that they were negligent. They claimthat a nassive
eart hquake that happened at that tine was responsi bl e.
The governnment said they were negligent.

| just wanted to say, | wanted to -- that
was a 12,000 gallon -- 12,000 barrel spill. That was a
large spill, but | wanted to conpare it to sonme, this is
their main -- this is the only black spot on their
record, this was recent, this was in 2022, | wanted to
conpare that to the DP -- Deep Water Horizon 2002 Gulf of
Mexico spill, 3.19 mllion barrels, Shell, the N ger

Delta, over 7,000 rmultiple slow notion spills totaling

mllions of barrels, and Chevron, many spills, including
an 800, 000-gallon spill in 2019.
So | just wanted to say al so that Repsol --

Repsol is transitioning to be a nmulti-energy conpany.
They were the first in the industry to commt to net zero
by 2050, and they are converting their refineries to
hydrogen and bio fuels, not sinply building -- just
sinply building wind and sol ar projects, they're
converting their refineries. So --

CHWN STAFFCORD: Thank you, M. Sigler.

MR SIGER That's all? That's all | have
time for?
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CHWN STAFFORD: That's your three m nutes,
t hank you.

MR SIGER Okay. Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Up next we have
El i zabet h Wal sh.

MS. WALSH: Good norning. Can you hear ne
okay?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes. Thank you.

M5. WALSH. Good nor ni ng, Chairnman and
Menmbers of the Commttee. My nane is Elizabeth Wal sh and
|'"'mhere as -- today as the trustee of the Zacchaeus
Fam |y Trust, and as a | andowner in the Concho area of
Apache County, in the sanme undevel oped
gr oundwat er - dependent region affected by the Lava Run
| nt erconnection Project, and the wi nd devel opnent it is
meant to support.

| want to be clear that |I'm not opposed to
renewabl e energy. |'m here because where and how t hese
projects are built nmatters. Especially in places |like
Concho, where the | and and water systens are limted and
easi |y disrupted.

The Lava Run transm ssion |ine does not run
directly through the center of Concho, but it lies to the
east of us and on its way toward the Springerville
Subst ati on, and crosses the sane vol cani c | andscape and
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groundwat er systemthat serve Concho and surroundi ng
rural properties.

G oundwat er and drai nage systens do not
foll ow property lines, so construction inpacts al ong that
corridor are relevant to those of us who depend on shared
wat er resources. The project area sits wthin and next
to the Springerville volcanic field, that neans the | and
is made up of fractured vol canic rock, volcanic deposits,
and snmal |l uneven pockets of | oose subsurface materi al
formed by water -- excuse ne -- fornmed by water flow and
gravity known as alluvial and colluvial deposits that
strongly influence drainage and groundwater recharge.

These nmaterials play an inportant role in
how wat er noves across the | and and soaks into the
ground. When they are disturbed by |arge-scale
construction, they can increase erosion, flooding, and
i npacts to groundwater, unless they are carefully studied
and managed. | live very close to Otega sink, which is
a natural depression and drainage feature in this
| andscape.

The volcanic terrain |ike ours features
such -- or features, such as sinks, are often closely
tied to how surface water enters the subsurface and
recharges the groundwater system Many famlies in
Concho depend on that shared groundwater, and changes to
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how wat er noves across and into the | and can affect nore
t han one property.

Concho does not have a nunici pal water
system Peopl e depend on private wells and rai nwat er
harvesting. |In volcanic terrain, groundwater does not
behave in a uniformor predictable way. Recharge and
fl ow pass that can change over very short distances,
whi ch neans surface di sturbances can have | asting effects
on wells and water quality.

These concerns are anplified by our nonsoon
season, heavy, fast-noving storns are a normal part of
life here. The roads, foundations and work pads are cut
into thin soils and fractured rock, runoff increases,
erosi on accel erates, and water that once soaked into the
ground can be diverted el sewhere. Once those changes
occur, they are difficult, if not inpossible, to undo.

This is not a new concern. Decades ago
Salt River Project recognized the sensitivity of this
area and carried out detailed site-specific studies in
the Concho well field, including groundwater nonitoring
near ny property, before building najor infrastructure.
That history shows that careful planning and mtigation
have | ong been consi dered necessary here.

The Lava Run Interconnection Project is
bei ng considered largely on its own, even though it
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exists to support nmultiple large wind projects, including
the Bl ack R dge Wnd Project, whose power will be used
outside the | ocal area.

Wi | e exporting energy is not unusual, it
does nean that | ocal communities, |ike Concho, bear
long-term |l and and water risks, while the benefits flow
el sewhere. That really does --

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you, Ms. Wal sh.

M5. WALSH: Thank you

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. That was all
the public comenters in the room W wll now nove to
the renote | ocation of Springerville.

THE REPORTER:  Chai r man.

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes. Oh, M. Cepand spoke
previously at the last hearing. This is for people who
haven't already spoken to the commttee.

MR DERSTINE: M. Chairnman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, M. Derstine.

MR DERSTINE: | received a note fromthe
renote hearing roomthat's being staffed by fol ks from
Peaks Audi o, as well as representatives of SWCA | did --
in the note being passed along to ne indicated that the
hearing roomat the airport which was recommended by the
Town of Springerville, apparently is not |arge enough for
t he nunber of -- the nunmber of fol ks who have showed up
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to provide public coment, and folks are frustrated that
sone of themare having to wait out in the hall.

And so there's no solution to that, |
sinply noted that we selected this renpte hearing
| ocati on or public coment |ocation based on input from
the town of Springerville, it is what it is. And we're
doi ng our best to accommpdate everyone there, but | just
wanted to note for the record that folks are -- there's a
nunber of fol ks who have shown up to provide comment and
t he room apparently isn't | arge enough to acconmobdat e
everyone at the sanme tine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you for that
information, M. Derstine. There's not nuch we can do
about it fromhere. Wth that, we will begin by taking
comment fromthe location in Springerville.

Up first we have Susan Maxwel | .

M5. MAXVELL: Hi, ny nane is Susan Maxwel | .
I'mfromthe Vernon area. W just found out a week ago
about the Bl ack Ri dge project.

| object to your approval of this
interconnect line to the Lava Run wi nd turbine project to
a foreign country comng into Arizona, Repsol, that has a
docunented history of environnental violations,

di sregardi ng penalties as a cost of doing business rather
than a deterrent.
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They al so have a nunber of pending
| awsuits, earning them a suspect reputation for
reliability. You're setting a dangerous precedent by
all owi ng known violators to disregard our | aws.

You're starting the begi nning of many, many
interconnection lines that will decinmate this entire
area. Once one is allowed to put such a huge
infrastructure of interconnection, you'll be forced to
all ow the rest of them

These are communities that the lines are
runni ng near -- excuse ne -- these are the comunities
that the lines are running near with horrific inpacts.
We're being forced to see this eyesore with all of its
negative i npacts and dangers, just so another state can
benefit.

The projects are expensive and have a
short-term|lifespan when conpared to other energy
production possibilities. Leaving the interconnect
desol ate and a junkyard al ong t he hi ghways.

There are only negative and i nappropri ate
consequences froman interconnect line like this, and no
benefits for our area.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Donal d Maxwel | .

MR MAXWVELL: M nane is Donald Maxwel | . |

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 250 VOLUMEYV 02/09/2026 793

also live in the Vernon area, and | was a registered
pr of essi onal engi neer for 41 years.

| object to your approval of this
i nterconnection line for the Lava Run wi nd turbines
project. Should you approve this line, it would open the
door for several other projects comng into Apache
County. Apache County woul d end up bei ng not hi ng but
solar and wind turbine farns in the southern section of
Apache County with interconnection lines for each
project. That would make it conpletely detrinmental to
the residents that |ive here.

The addition of this interconnection |ine
and ot her project interconnection |lines would conpletely
overwhel m our outdated and anti quated el ectrical grid
systemas it stands now.

Agai n, | oppose any approval of this
i nt erconnection |ine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Jerry Stewart.

AV TECHNI CI AN: Jerry Stewart w shes not to

speak.
CHWN STAFFORD: (kay. How about Kat hl een
Stewart ?
AV TECHNI Cl AN:  Kat hl een Stewart w shes not
t o speak.
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Do we have
Kri sty Aubuchon?

M5. AUBUCHON: Hi. M nane is Kristy
Aubuchon, and | would like to object to this turbine
proj ect because of the fact that we live on the third
| argest volcanic area. And it covers over 300, 000 square
feet between Springerville and Show Low.

And | know for a fact that they did ban
bl asting at ny uncle's house because they were afraid of
the tectonic plates shifting and a vol cano erupti ng.

If they erupt, all of the area up here is
going to be under |ava and under water. Not just our
area, but Al pine, Concho, Vernon, Show Low, Lakesi de,

Li nden, Hol brook, all of it. And then what is the use of
putting themup if there's no people around because you
caused this vol cano erupti on.

CHWN STAFFORD: M ss, coul d you pl ease
spell your |ast nane for the record?

MS. AUBUCHON: A-u-Db-u-c-h-o0-n, Aubuchon.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

MR ANABLE: M. Chairman, before we
proceed, can | ask a question about --

CHWN STAFFORD: No, no. This is the tine
for public comment. W'I|l get to your opening
statenents.
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MR. ANABLE: But it's about the public
comment .

CHWN STAFFORD: No, you're a party. You'l
get your chance. Now is the time for public comment.

Up next we have Llana Kelley, and I
apol ogi ze if |I'm m spronounci ng your names. Wen you get
to the podium please correct ne. And spell your nanme
for the court reporter.

MS5. KELLEY: It's Llana, L-l-a-n-a,
K-e-1-1-e-y.

And | do oppose this interconnection |ine,
because | found an article, even though it's in a
different state, it says, an Ontario community
self-reporting health survey, WndVQG Ce, identified the
nost commonly reported | W-induced synptons, an altered
quality of life, sleep disturbances, excessive tiredness,
headaches, stress, and distress. Qher reported effects
i nclude m grai nes, hearing problens, tinnitus, heart
pal pitations, anxiety, and depression. In addition to
degraded living conditions, adverse soci oeconom c effects
have been reported. |In sone cases the effects were
severe enough that individuals in Ontari o abandoned their
hones or reached financial agreenents with their
devel opnent.

And | oppose this because that's not going
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to be good for our area, and all the health effects that
It can cause.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Up next we have
Jann M ke Mooki. Pl ease pronounce your nane and spell it
for the record.

AV TECHNI CI AN. M. Chairman, that person
Is not checked that they w sh to speak.

CHWN STAFFCORD: All right. Thank you.

Up next we have Kat hy Peel man.

AV TECHNI Cl AN: M. Chairman, the next
person we have who indicated that they wish to speak is,
| believe, is pronounced Andy Huyck.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. If you could
state your nane and spell it for the court reporter,
pl ease.

MR HUYCK: M/ nanme is Andy Huyck, A-n-d-vy,
H u-y-c-k. Thank you for letting ne have this tine to
speak to you today. | live in Vernon, California --
Vernon, California -- Vernon, Arizona. Funny.

| f the ACC approves the interconnection
line, this is what we wll have to live with, a
27-ml e-1ong high-voltage interconnection line fromtwo
substations to connect to the grid at TEP' s Springerville
CGenerating Station, two new | arge fenced, very visible
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electric substations, the first one | ocated on H ghway 60
at the turnoff to Greens Peak on the sout hwest corner,
approxi mately 200 power poles, each 180 feet tall to
support the 27-mle interconnection.

These -- these poles are going to be three
ti mes higher than the existing poles. The existing poles
at this tinme are 60 feet tall, these are 180. The
i nconpl ete environnental studies related to
ar chaeol ogi cal resources and mgratory birds, despite the
direct instructions fromthe Line Siting Commttee to
engage with affected towns, Repsol has failed to
meani ngfully communicate with | ocal communities.

|'ve been to a few of these neetings and
|'ve listened to the people tal k, and when sonebody tal ks
to nme, | want themto tell ne the truth. | don't want
me -- themto tell nme what they -- you know, what they've
been told to say.

And it boils down to is just to followthe
noney. Repsol has docunented history of environnental
violations, treating penalties as a cost of doing
busi ness rather than a deterrent, plus a nunber of
pendi ng | awsui ts.

You know, they have a | ot of noney. The
Springerville Generating Station is not closing, and it
Is transitioning to natural gas, neaning the project is
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not necessary for local energy reliability or job
preservati on.

Thank you very nuch for your tine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

All right. Up next we have Tara Davis.

M5. DAVIS: H, Comm ssion, Linda Wil and
Is going to read ny statenent, because | have a visual
i mpai rment. Thank you.

MS. VEEI LAND:  You' ve heard from hundreds of
folks in opposition to this project. Not entitled
NI MBYs, hard-working people trying to explain the facts
of the unique environnent at this project's proposed
| ocati on, because the applicant provided an i nadequate,
m sl eadi ng analysis in their CEC application.

Arizona Revised Statutes identifies factors
for the committee to consider. [|'Il highlight only new
i nformati on since the | ast hearing.

Factor 1, wldlife. Over 100 speci al
status species were identified as present or likely to
occur in the one-mle study area. But there was no
menti on of species or inpacts related to the additional
27 mles or nore of access roads required to reach,
build, and maintain the interconnection |ine.

Factor 5, archaeol ogical reports did not
cover the entire study area or address access roads.
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There was no nention of historic US. 60 or US. 180, as
identified by SHPO And the visual report was flawed and
did not include substations, especially 1 and 2.

Factor 6, study area intersects five
wildlife novenent areas, and three Arizona Gane & Fi sh
conservati on opportunity areas, which provide
connectivity with wildlife corridors all up and down the
perennial Little Col orado R ver.

The application dism sses inpacts as only
tenporary during construction, but Arizona Gane & Fi sh
wildlife conservation strategy states interconnection
lines and their access roads cause permanent habit at
| oss, fragnentation, wldlife nortality, and spread
i nvasi ve plants and weeds. The environnent will never
fully recover.

Factor 9, inpact on Springerville volcanic
field potential International Geoheritage Site was not
fully addressed. ARS states, "The commttee shall give
speci al consideration to the protection of areas uni que
because of biological wealth. The application identified
seven areas of biological wealth in the study area, and
did not address areas of biological wealth in the
vicinity of the project,” which is what is required by
Arizona Adm nistrative Code Rule 14-3 for Exhibit C

Based on these factors and others, detail ed
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in the limted appearances we request the commttee find
this project's siting is not environnentally conpati bl e
and deny the CEC

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Fred Har per.

AV TECHNICIAN: Sir, could you repeat that
name?

CHWN STAFFCRD: Fred Har per

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: He had to | eave.

AV TECHNI Cl AN:  Fred Harper is not here.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Then, let's
see, Lonni e Randall.

MR. RANDALL: Thank you. |I'mhere to do
whatever | can to stop the wind and solar projects
proposed for this area. The public and we, the peopl e of
Concho and Vernon, didn't know about this until a little
over a week ago.

The public disclosure neetings they held in
Ver non and Concho were kept secret fromus and | wonder
how this is public disclosure? W only heard about it by
word of nmouth a day or two before. |It's as if they
didn't want anyone to know about it and were hopi ng few
peopl e woul d show up.

Fromthe two disclosure neetings that |
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attended i n Concho and Vernon, | got the distinct

I npressi on that nobody who woul d be |iving next door to
it wants this unsustainable, inefficient, ugly
boondoggl e.

If it happens, ny wife and I won't stay.

We chose to |ive where we |live because of its nearly
unnol ested beauty. |If this project happens, we wll be
surrounded on three sides betwen both of the proposed
areas of the Black Ri dge project. The nearest one being
about a mle and a half fromny house. W can't live

i ke that.

There aren't many places like this left.

If we continue to rape it all away, it wll soon be gone.
Is noney really nore inportant than that? It's not about
oil, coal, natural gas, hydro, w nd, solar or nuclear,
it's about npney.

Money i s the nunber one source of power in
this world, so green energy isn't -- so-called green
energy isn't eco friendly. You can't save the planet by
destroying the earth. | have an idea -- thank you --
let's forget about these thousands of insane w nd
generators that are five tines taller than the tall est
transm ssion towers and two-thirds as high the height of
the Enpire State building; | |ove solar power, | believe
everyone should have their own and get off the grid. Not
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mles and mles of glass and cabl e covering the earth.

The nodel of trying to power everything on
earth froma central source so that you can keep everyone
on the nonthly pay plan was never and will never be
sustai nable. That will only lead to the status quo of
never - endi ng expansion until there's no place left worth
living in.

Let's di sassenble the solar farns and
reinstall them on everyone's hones and busi nesses. Then
we won't need to continually grow the grid. W won't
have to worry about bl ackouts, and use the grid
el sewhere.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Conni e Rogers.

M5. ROGERS: Hi, I'm Connie Rogers. | live
in Eagar, Arizona, which is part of Round Valley, which
Is right next to Springerville.

| want to say that the windm Il system if
it was built here, it is for Tucson. Springerville does
not get power fromthe Springerville Power Station. It
is transmtted to Tucson, and Tucson is 236 m | es away
from here.

There are plans to convert this plant from
coal to natural gas. A 24-inch gas line is proposed to
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bring us gas from Gal |l up, New Mexico. |If Tucson wants
these eyesore windmlls built, build them near Tucson.
|'ve seen -- |'ve seen the pathetic wwndm |l farnms al ong
the 1-10 in Pal m Springs, California area. W don't want
t hese here.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Sara Kizzar.

M5, KIZZAR: Hi, |I'm Sarah Kizzar
S-a-r-a-h, K-i-z-z-a-r. And |I'mhere to speak agai nst
the interconnection |line. The devel oper nay say
mtigation will reduce inpacts, but mtigati on cannot
undo per manent danage.

This line will fragnent open | and, disrupt
pronghorn mgration, and threaten rare birds, |ike
Mexi can spotted ow s and bald eagles. WIdlife avoids
industrial infrastructure for up to five mles, and no
of fsets or screening can restore these natural corridors.

It al so cannot restore the rural character,
dark skies, quiet nights, or property values. The
cleanup is left over -- or left to our county even before
turbines are built. Approving this line -- approving is
approving irreversible harm and no mtigation can
prevent the ecosystem di sruption and conmunity | oss that
will follow

For the sake of Springerville and its
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wldlife, this Iine should not be approved.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Joshua Kizzar.

MR KIZZAR: Thank you, M. Chairman. My
nane's Joshua Ki zzar, J-o0-s-h-u-a, K-i-z-z-a-r

|'ve grown up, raised and grown up here in
the White Mountains, and | di sapprove of the
i nterconnection |ine, because approving it would be
approvi ng the pernmanent destruction of our way of life.

Qur open spaces w Il vanish, and the
pronghorn herds that use these mgration corridors wll
be trapped, displaced, and threatened. The quiet nights
we cherish will be replaced with industrial noise, and
the line is the gateway to the full Lava Run W nd
Project. And once it passes, nothing wll stop what
cones next. Silence will be taken as agreenent. And we
refuse to stay silent in our conmunity.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have G nger Hardi ng.

M5. HARDI NG  Good norni ng, Comm ssion
Members. My nane is G nger Harding, Gi-n-g-e-r,
Ha-r-d-i-n-g. | ama resident of Eagar, Arizona. |
al so own several businesses in the Round Vall ey
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community, including in Springerville. | am speaking on
behal f of nyself, ny famly, ny businesses.

This area relies heavily on tourism M
busi nesses are suffering because of slow winters, and we
rely very heavily on tourist attractions during the
summer. And this will greatly inmpact summer tourism and
hunting tourismthat are vital to all of these
communities in Apache County.

| am a native Arizonan. As a business
owner, | vehenently oppose this transm ssion |ine, which
is an open gate to the horrors that may cone afterward,
that will cone afterward if this transmssion line is
appr oved.

We have other ideas. MW famly and | have
ot her business ideas to inplenent in this comunity.
They will not be inplenented if this inpact is realized.
There is no way that businesses can conti nue to grow and
thrive here and support the community with tax revenue
that cones fromoutside of the community if this happens
al ong our routes into town.

Approval of this line is a great detrinent
to our community. Ohers along the line, not just the
Round Val | ey community, approval would target our skies
and environnent to collect and run energy to ot her
pl aces. There is absolutely no benefit to anyone in
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Apache County for this line to be placed and di srupt our
|ifestyles, the beauty, and our busi nesses.

Arizona Gane & Fi sh have detail ed that
there are dangers fromthis transmssion |line. You ve
heard others speak this norning that there are great
dangers to the wildlife in the area. The water table in
this area, the land in this area wll be forever
di srupted and changed, and it will never be retrieved.

| want you to know al so that | support the
towns of Eagar and Springerville in their appearances and
their statenents to your conmttee.

Pl ease vote no on this transm ssion |ine.
Do not approve of this transmssion |line. Please save
open spaces.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Up next we have
Bet sy Lagos.

M5. LAGOS: Good norning. M legal nane is
Li zabeth, L-i-z-a-b-e-t-h, |ast nane Lagos, L-a-g-o0-s.
have a bachelor's degree in biology, and | have read a
| ot of studies about these transm ssion |ines.

| al so have personal experience as a
w ldlife rehabilitator and have personally had to
eut hani ze birds that have hit transmni ssion |ines and
ripped their wings off. And it makes ne sick to ny
stonach that noney goes over wildlife in all of the areas
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in the United States that have these things.

| agree with everyone who has cone before
me in this room Everyone has valid points. | believe
that you as a commttee should be listening to the people
who have to live in this area, and deal with the
aftermat h of what npbney can do to our environnent.

| have a son who is a hunter, he's opposed
tothis. | personally lived in Pinal County before |
cane here and have seen what transm ssion |ines have done
down there, and all of the solar projects that have cone
fromall of this. It's a ness, and | hate it there now

| ride horses for pleasure, and horses

don't like transmssion lines. WIldlife doesn't like
transm ssion |ines, they make noise, they vibrate. It
gets worse when it's wet outside, and it -- the

construction drives the wildlife anay. And it's just a
horrible thing to | ook at.

| can't even ride ny horses in the area |
amin where we have transmssion lines. | have to stay
away fromthem because it freaks themout. W have
noved up here, a lot of us, and sone of us are natives, |
amnot a native, but I've lived in Arizona for 35 years,
| nmoved up here for the peace, quiet, serene, beautiful
| andscape, the wildlife. This is going to destroy all of
t hat .
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The first speaker today said that the
Native Americans are for this project, and if they're for
this project, then | suggest that they put this project
on the reservation.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have M chael Brady.

MR. BRADY: (Good norni ng, Conm ssioners,
t hank you for giving nme this opportunity to speak. M
nane is Mchael Brady, B-r-a-d-y.

| have lived here, | like to tel
everybody, for nore than 150 years because ny
grandparents honest eaded here back in 1884, so our famly
roots run so deep, all of this nmountain and you -- you
can't even inmagine the | ove that we have for every inch
of this nountain.

| raised ny children and ny grandchil dren
are here, and | have been a teacher here in the community
for over 40 years. And | comute this H ghway 60 that
goes from Show Low to Springerville regularly, nmany tines

each week, as | did when | taught for 40 years.

| ' ve heard so many comments about -- about
t hi ngs such as the vol canos, that -- that once we're
here -- our |ocal paper about two years ago did a huge

docunentary and | wanted to get it, but it is available
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t hrough the White Muntai n | ndependent newspaper, and
they disclosed all of this area and the hundreds of
extinct volcanos. This area's unique to many places in
t he worl d.

There's so much that is at stake here in
this area. This interconnection line would just --
you've heard it would be the beginning, the tip of an
i ceberg of so many sad projects that woul d conme and
follow

As | nentioned, there's so much beauty here
and | can't help but think, as | ook at you and | see
you across the long counter bench here, sone of you have
been here, | know you have, and you've seen the beauty of
this area, just -- just in the last few hours as we
travel ed, | arge herds of antel ope, 40, 50 antel ope,
running along the fence line, just -- it's just
br eat ht aki ng.

So many people just pull over just for a
nonment just to take a look at it. So there would be a
negative inpact to the tourismand the hunting and all of
the surrounding area here if this interconnection |ine
does go in. And the businesses would suffer and woul d be
underm ned by this project, and along with so many |ives
bei ng negati vely affected.

| don't know how to really conclude this
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other than |I've lived here so | ong and so have ny
grandparents and ny parents. And so many aunts and

uncles that | wish | could have themall here, we woul d

fill this entire building with them
As | |l ook out the door here and see people
stretched out towards our beautiful nountains, | thank

them for being here, and I want themto know that we | ove
themall and we appreciate themand their support. And
we ask you to pl ease oppose this interconnection |ine
with all of our hearts.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Karen Smt h.

AV TECHNI CI AN: Karen Sm t h.

M5. SM TH: H, nmy nane is Karen Smith,
K-a-r-e-n, Smi-t-h. M husband and | retired up here
five years ago, and we canme here because of the beauty
and the peace and the quiet.

And to be closer to the hunting grounds
because both ny husband and | are hunters. This
transm ssion line is not what we canme up here to retire
Wi t h.

We don't want this line up here. W don't
want the health hazards. W don't want our wldlife
di srupted. And we don't want our peace and quiet to go
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away. So |'m asking you please to not approve this |ine.
Thank you.
CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.
Up next we have Kaye Dyson
M5. DYSON: M. Chairman and Menbers of the
Commttee -- Line Siting Commttee, thank you for this

opportunity. And we thank you for your service to

Arizona. I'msure it's hard work. |[|'m Kaye Dyson.
|'"ve lived here for 46 years. |'ve |lived
in the White Mountains for 50 years. | cane from Al pi ne.

My husband was a forester there. For 10 years | served
on the Springerville Town Council, six of it as nayor.
And | have just been recently appointed to fill a vacant
seat until the next election, so cane out of retirenent
and back on the council.

| urge you to consider the consequences of
your decision. This is going to affect the health, the
safety, and the welfare of not just ne and ny famly and
those of Springerville and Eagar, but of all the people

in the Wihite Mountains who |live here and al so t hose who

visit.

W' ve tal ked about health, you' ve heard the
people. It affects people, it affects aninmals. It's a
negati ve biological inpact to our |andscape. | live

ri ght near Becker Lake, that's only like four mles from
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where a potential wind farmw !l go in.

And | kid you not, let's tal k about
wildlife, in ny yard: Bear, elk, deer, bighorn sheep,
bats, eagles, and an occasional skunk. That's a reality.

Safety, let's talk safety. Springerville
Airport is the highest elevation airport in this part of
Arizona. |It's critical. W service New Mexico, Western
New Mexi co, and all of Northeastern Arizona. Qur airport
is critical. The existence of transm ssion |lines of that
hei ght is unacceptable. [It's dangerous.

We al so have conplications because we're at
8,000 feet. Renenber Texas? Renenber how all the
transm ssion lines and all the w nd turbines froze? That
coul d happen here. W don't want it.

Fire and drought. W nearly |lost part of
Geer and the towns of Springerville and Eagar | ast year
because of wind and the little spark that cane off of
sone transm ssion line. Many of us were evacuated and
had to wait until the fire was put out. This is the
potential of nore infrastructure for power.

CHWN STAFFCORD: Thank you. Thank you,

Ms. Dyson.

Up next we have Sandra Cl asen. Pl ease
correct ne if | m spronounce your nane.

MS. CLASEN. Good norning, Sandra C asen.
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Cl asen, CIl-a-s-e-n.

Water heater tanks. Al right. |Introduced
in the 1920s. By the 1950s, water heater tanks were
commonpl ace in hones, 40 years later the tankl ess water
heater was introduced, snmall and efficient. Imagine, if
you wll, trying to fit a tel egraph nmachine, a sundial, a
desk phone, a traditional canera, and a desktop conputer
i nto your pocket. Soneone did and called it a cell
phone.

The natural progression of technol ogy

advancenent is nore efficient and nore conpact. Turbine
w nd farm energy has been around since the 1970s.
Unar guably, they produce considerably nore energy today
than ever before. Although, in order to do so, they've
gotten taller and taller and taller, and the |arger they
are, the nore negative inpact on the environnent.

W nd turbines started at roughly 50 feet
tall, they're now about 650 feet. Wile w nd turbines
are becom ng nore efficient, they are not becom ng
snmaller. That's a huge red flag, signaling that
technologically they are heading in the wong direction.

Technol ogy advancenent i s about creating

wi nd, wind situations. Technol ogy advancenent is naking

things nore efficient and nore conpact, |ike the water
heater, like the cell phone.
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VWal mart, Target, Home Depot, Intel, and
many ot her corporations are already using Bl oom Ener gy,
| ncor porated, Bloom Box field cell energy. The Bl oom Box
is an on-site distributed power generator operating 24/7,
roughly 30 feet by 5 feet by 9 feet, with an output of
324 kilowatts per skip. I'mnot here to sell you on
Bl oom Energy, but froma docunentary | watched, a
residential unit will only be about the size of a
shoebox.

Are any of you famliar with Bl oom Energy?
Leadi ng edge energy technology is at our fingertips and
it is gaining nonentum Fuel cell energy, thorium
reactors, nuclear fusion, energy, the wind band, not to
be confused with the wind turbines. Electromgnetic
ener gy harnessing energy fromthe atnnospheres either --

CHWN STAFFCORD: Thank you, M. d asen.

M5. CLASEN. OCh, damm. Ckay. Thank you
Thank you very nuch.

CHWN STAFFORD: Up next we have Bee Quog.

MS. QUOG Hi, ny nane is Bee Quog,
Qu-0-g, I"'mfrom Show Low. First thing | want to
address is the Native Americans. Tribal nmenbers don't
want any of these projects within 10 mles of their
borders, so let ne just nake that perfectly clear.

| respectfully oppose this interconnection
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transm ssion line. There has been insufficient,
I ndependent, unresol ved research of public welfare risks,
devastating financial exposures, poverty-driven inpacts,
ridiculous and false clains on the environnent, deceptive
clains on the anount of |ocal jobs, both short-term and
|l ong-term by this renewabl e conpany.

| pray that your eyes are open to the
extrene harm and hardships this project will force upon
the majority of the people living in this comunity.

Represent ati ves of Repsol and their nmany
other U S. entities has repeatedly stated in their public
nmeetings that they will use and apply what ever
term nol ogy necessary for themto get their certificates
and their permts approved. This is called unethical and
i's not acceptabl e.

So has the State or County done its due
dil i gence on researchi ng unbi ased, long-term future
econom c inpacts of this specific area?

Nucl ear and natural gas are on the
I mredi ate horizon, and what is going to beconme of this
area when it is left with hundreds of square mles of
i ndustrial waste? Soon these interconnection lines wll
not have any purpose.

Has the State or County done any unbi ased
research on future studies on the comunity's val ues and
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how an industrialized environnent affects the econony and
tax revenues, especially in rural Arizona? O thoroughly
i nvestigated the poverty it creates when the area has

|l ost all desirability to be lived in or visited?

And what can the State and County possibly
provide that -- or provide to ensure us that there wll
be adequate funding and restoration of the area after the
life of these structures? You sinply can't. Because you
cannot prom se that these shadow conpani es won't dissol ve
and their surety bond providers won't dissolve or file
bankr upt cy.

88 percent of these projects have sinply
been abandoned, | eaving rural comunities in extrene
poverty worldwi de. Has the State or County done any due
dil i gence and require any independent bias thorough
i nvestigation of Repsol ?

Repsol is operating with thousands of
shadow conpanies in the U S. alone, currently has 13
billion, that's with a B, dollars in litigation matters
on i ssues of m srepresentation, environmental danages to
tax litigations, making it extrenely questionabl e that
they will ever cover any costs for repairs or
renedi ati on, especially with the huge current shift
towards better, nore efficient power sources, |ike
nat ural gas or nucl ear.
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This interconnection line is entirely poor
planning and in no way a w se decision for the future of
Apache County or its citizens.

The deci sion you nake on this project wll
either preserve this community and its cherished way of
life for generations to cone or permanently destroy it.
Again, | pray your eyes are open to the reality of the
decision that |lies before you and the majority of the
community lives that it will permanently affect. So
choose wsely --

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

M5. QUOG -- and deny this project.

CHWN STAFFORD: Up next we have Tyl er
Wat ki ns.

MR VWATKINS: M nane is Tyl er WatKkins,
Wa-t-k-i-n-s. W were told these windmlls are being
built for the good of our town, but the truth is they
benefit only a small group, while pushing the rest of us
out of the place we all call hone.

These turbines wll permanently danage our
nmount ai ns and di srupt mgration patterns of wildlife that
have |lived here | ong before any of us, elk, deer, bighorn
sheep, and pronghorn.

Once the danamge is done, it cannot be
undone. You cannot put a nountain back together. You
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cannot restore an ecosystemafter it's been destroyed.
We're repeatedly told to attend the
nmeeti ngs and speak up and that our voices will be heard
and they matter, but let's be honest, they don't.
Deci sions are already made. This isn't about community
input, it's about noney. |It's about politicians |ining
their pockets while ignoring the people who el ect them
Who's going to pay for the 50 to 80 percent
drop in property values for ne, and not just ne, but
not -- the devel opers, not the politicians, we wll -- we
will.
Every honeowner in this town wll pay the
price while being told it's for our benefit. W're
prom sed j obs and econom c growh, but the prom ses don't
hold up to the reality.
These turbines are not built in America.
They do not create |long-term/|local jobs, instead of
enpl oyi ng | ocal workers and supporting famlies in this
town, we're told -- we're sold to cheap | abor. Even
inmate | abor will be used. This is not investnent, this
is exploitation.
W're also told this is clean energy, but
t he pollution created during manufacturing,
transportation, installation, and eventual disposal is
far greater than anyone wants to admt.
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And when these turbines fail, as we've
al ready seen across the United States, they will not be
renoved. Everyone knows the cost is too high. And the
burden will once again fall on the comunity of Arizona,
Springerville, Show Low, everyone here.

This power isn't even ours, it's being
generated for outside interests, while we're left wth
t he consequences, destroyed | and, |ost property val ue,
and a fractured community.

It's tinme to stop lying to us, stop
pretending this is about hel ping our town, stop telling
us to trust the process that ignores us at every step.
Start telling the truth and ook at it in a big bold
perspective, the lies wll eventually end.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Renee Watki ns.

AV TECHNI CI AN She does not w sh to speak.

CHWN STAFFORD: Let's hear from Brenda

G m nski .

M5. ClI M NSKI : My nanme is Brenda G m nski,
CGi-mi-n-s-k-i. | live in Eagar and | own a business in
Springerville. | aman owner and broker of Wite
Mount ai n Ponderosa Realty. | have lived in this area for
23 years.
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As a realtor, | amalready seeing the
I npact of possibility of wnd farns comng to the Wite
Mount ai ns. Buyers and sellers are tal ki ng about how
turbines will change the views and alter the very reason
t hey cane and are -- or considering to cone to |live here.
Every uncertainty is beginning to affect their decisions.

Qur | andscapes are not just beautiful, they
are essential to property value. |If you drive east on
H ghway 60 through Springerville, you'll experience w de
open rolling hills and views that stretch for mles,
wildlife is visible. You can see the skies -- the ski
slopes to the southwest. This is a sense of peace and
openness that defines this area. The same feeling occurs
when you drive north on H ghway 180 and 191 from Al pi ne
to Eagar and Springerville. The open fields to the north
and northeast create a calmthat is --

CHWN STAFFORD: Ms. G m nski, please, can
you pl ease -- can you please slow down a little bit? The
court reporter is having trouble keeping up with you.

MS. CCIMNSKI: 1'll send you ny notes.
|'ve got to fit it in.

But this is why -- this openness is why
peopl e nove here. Every day | work with people who want
to | eave the hustle and bustle of the city life. They
come for open skies during the day and dark skies at
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ni ght, and uninterrupted views. The experience is found
here and is at risk.

W al so see -- we al so see what change
| ooks |Iike. When traveling on H ghway 260 from Sunri se
down into the town, you can see the red flashing lights
fromthe wind farns in New Mexi co that dom nate the
hori zon. They disrupt the natural night sky. Qur |ocal
airport is barely noticeable at night. But these |lights
cannot be ignored.

From a professional standpoint, it is well
established that |ocation, views, and surroundi ngs drive
property values. Studies across the country show t hat
properties near w nd turbines experience reduced buyer
interest, longer tines on the market, and decreased
val ues, especially in scenic rural areas.

In real estate we |live by |ocation,
| ocation, location, and the Wite Muntains have this.

If wwnd farns are approved, people who noved here to
escape i ndustrial devel opnent will | eave. Buyers wll
| ook el sewhere. Local businesses wll suffer.

And once these | andscapes are altered, they
cannot be restored. As one of our national hyms says,
"Ch, beautiful, for spacious skies."” This is where you
find it. Those who have not spent tine here may not
fully understand what it is at stake, but those of us who
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live and work here do. This is our hone. It is unique,
irreplaceabl e, and found nowhere else in Arizona. W
call it God's country.

Pl ease hear our voi ces and protect our
speci al place. Please stop the project from noving
forward. And do not approve the |ine.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Chris Lew s.

MR LEWS: M nane is Chris Lew s.

guess you could say |I'mone of those good ol' boys. M

famly cane here in the early 1800s. [|I'ma fourth
generation carpenter. | heard a guy talking about
carpentry and work. | know what being a carpenter's son
is, I know what it was to grow up to hunt these woods to

feed our famly, to fish these waters so that we could
put nmeat in the freezer. | grew up there.

Now, if you go a little bit towards
Hol br ook, you've got Hol brook there and you have Bechtel,
the Cholla Power Plant. In the early '70s, it took off.
Bechtel cane in, Hol brook just flourished. 1In fact, we
nmoved to Hol brook so we could chase the work that was
t here.

| ' masking you, I"'mgoing to pull at sone
heart strings right now, because | appreciate every one
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of you that's up there, because now |I'm a pastor, and |
appreci ate your tine, but sonething that we haven't
tal ked about is the next generations.

And | invite you to go and drive by Choll a
Park, that's just sitting there now | ask you to go
t hrough Hol brook that's just sitting there and just about
to die. There's just not anything going on because of
all that. W don't want that here.

W grew up in this country. W |learned to
live off this country. And one of the greatest things is
at ni ght when you | ook up and you | ook at those stars,
you can al nost touch them And | know in the Valley you
don't see the stars |ike that anynore.

But |'m asking you for your kids, for your
grandki ds, for the next generations, just to cone up to
witness it for yourself, to nmake a decision for the next
gener ati on, because you're asking us to put sonething in
our country that doesn't benefit us, it benefits others.
And it hurts everything around us.

And I'mjust here to pull at your heart
strings. |'mjust here because | know each and every one
of you have a heart, just |like we do. And | know that
there's things that are bigger and greater than noney.
And | give the Lord all the glory and all the praise and
| thank you for your time. Anen.
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CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Stacy Fadenrecht.

MR FADENRECHT: M/ nane is Stacy
Fadenrecht. S-t-a-c-y, F-a-d-e-n-r-e-c-h-t, and the

young gentl eman didn't butcher ny nane as bad as sone, so

it's okay.

| don't have a prepared statenent, so |I'm
going to tell it like it is fromthe heart. As | was
comng into town this norning, | got a good | ook at

G eens Peak, and | thought just how beautiful this area
really is. And then | got to thinking about the blight
that | see when | travel into New Mexico. | see those
towers sitting on the horizon, and they're ugly. And
usually there's only about a third of themthat are even
nmovi ng.

And ny thought was what's the point? So
this is our home. And if you guys pass this, you all get
to go back to your home, you don't have to | ook at this.
But we will. M children live in this town. |'m hoping
ny grandchildren wll |ive here, and one day maybe ny
gr eat - grandchi | dren.

But in 30 years when these w nd turbines
and this power line is no | onger necessary because
t hey' ve expired and nobody can get rid of them where are
y'all going to be?
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You guys won't be looking at it, but we
wll. Every |ast one of us are going to have to see that
abom nation. So what | suggest is y'all take this
proposal, you roll it up, and you drop it in the circul ar

file and forget about dealing with Repsol. And that's

all | got.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Janet LeBl anc.

MS. LeBLANC: My name is Janet LeBl anc,
J-a-n-e-t, L-e-B-l-a-n-c, fromLinden. | will not repeat
all that has been said. Instead, | will state | amin

full agreenent with all who have spoken opposing the
I nt erconnection |ine.

Pl ease | eave our nountain al one and uphol d
the oath you took to support the voice of the people by
opposing this interconnection line. Let the record
reflect we the peopl e have spoken and oppose this |ine.
Do the right thing and stonp this line right out of here.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Steve Heap.

AV TECHNI CIAN: M. Chairman, he appears to

have | eft.
CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Let's hear from
Val McCor d.
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M5. MCORD: Hi, I'mVal MCord, and I
thi nk you should void all the contracts you have to date
dealing with wind farm in light of the devel opnents of
whi ch you're probably aware: $24.6 nillion fine agai nst
Repsol by its host country, Spain. That happened | ess
than a week ago, that happened on February 3rd, Tuesday,
plus 2010, 2011. There's a history of investigations,
again by Spain, into Repsol and ot her energy conpani es
for industrial espionage, for bribery.

Now, does a conpany shift its nodus
operandi m dstream when it's doing very, very well, you
t hi nk? No.

All right. So maybe people involved in
thi s deci sion-nmaki ng process should execute, let's see,
affidavits, sworn affidavits that they have not had
contact with Repsol representatives where they were
prom sed financial rewards, any kind of material gain,
because this is a new devel opnent and you shoul d consi der
it.

And you should not, not continue wth the
wind farm and the extension |ine, whatever, because
you're dealing with an unethical conpany. |In fact, the
| evel of trust in governnent, this is going to bleed over
to you.

All of you are who are going to be
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I ncunbents and running again, you will be affected by
this. So would you vote them back into office, as they
shove this down your throat, people? Heck no. | don't
t hink so, guys. Think about it. And maybe your
nei ghbors are going to be watching you sayi ng, damm,
t hey' ve got a brand-new Mercedes SUV, | wonder where that
canme from

So -- oh, and the wonman who was a
bi ol ogi st, the naster's in biology, they just killed a
bald eagle on filmup in Mnnesota where they had an
Cbanma-era project with the University of M nnesota and
they decapitated a bald eagle, so Trunp is fining them
$14, 000.

One other thing to consider is these snall
nucl ear power plants, this is on Facebook for, Ilike,
Pi net op- Lakesi de, that's the next thing on the agenda.
This isn't the last. This isn't the |ast, people, rural
counties are, like, targeted, so. Wen those projects
come in and | ook for approval, you are going to be
scrutini zed.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Sinon Cox.

MR. COX: Good norning, Conm ssion and
Comm ssi on Menbers. Thank you for comng to our
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beauti ful corner of Arizona. | hope you appreciate it as
much as we do. | know this is about the interconnection
i ne, but you cannot tal k about the interconnection |ine
w t hout tal king about the wi nd farm because you can't
have one w t hout the other.

Up here we have a | arge nunber of Ponderosa
and Juni per that are dying due to the drought. The
Border|l ands Wnd Farm Proj ect was about 32 turbines, and
t ook between 80- and 160, 000 gal | ons of water per day
over a year. These two projects here are easily five
times the size of that. You can do the math of the water
and what it is going to take.

Now, that water for Borderlands canme out of
Springerville, probably this one can come out of here.
don't think this town can support this kind of water
usage.

Ch, | forgot ny nanme for you guys for the
record. Sinon Cox, S-i-mo-n, Go-x, and | live here in
Round Val |l ey.

So we | ove our open spaces up here and if
you, when you cone up here and admre our open spaces,
even for a second, please help us save them and do not
turn this into the eyesore that is West Texas.

Lastly, we've got -- sone of us got sone
flyers in the mail about this being an open public
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nmeeting. There were pieces in the paper about this being
an open public neeting. And there is nothing in here
t hat says that sone people will be restricted from
speaking at this neeting. |'ve heard froma few friends
who have been involved in this that they're being
restricted from speaki ng here because they spoke earlier.
l"'mnot famliar wth your rules, but just
wanted to nention that, that there was nothing in here
about people being restricted fromspeaking if they spoke
earlier.

So just like to close, we love our little
part of Arizona here. |If youlike it as well, please
hel p us save it, and do not approve these projects.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Carol Wit ney.

M5. WH TNEY: Hello, ny nanme is Carol
Whi t ney, and thank you for the opportunity for all of us
in the comunity here to speak. And I"'ma -- | was born
in Arizona and I'"'ma long-tine resident of Apache County.

| want to say that | amstrictly opposed to
the transmi ssion line and the wi nd farm devel opnent up
here in the Wiite Mountains -- in the beautiful Wite
Mount ai n ar ea.

This is one reason why | noved here was
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because of the beauty. And | won't repeat everything
everybody has said, but I'"'min agreenent that if the w nd
farmand the transm ssion line -- if the wind farns and
transm ssion lines are approved and proceed, we wl|
suffer the consequences environnentally, econom cally,
socially, and in many other ways it will affect our | and,
our water, our skies.

And it will affect the -- it wll affect
the mgration routes for many animals. |1've travel ed
back and forth between California and Arizona for nost of
my life, and |I've seen the first wind farns put in around
the Moj ave Desert, fromthe first wndml|l onward unti
Now.

And when | go through there now, nobst of
them are not running and they've just gotten bigger and
bi gger. And nost of themjust sit dormant. | don't want
that to happen out here. | also don't want our |and
val ue to be reduced and busi ness owners to have to | eave.
Landowners to have to | eave just because of a few
benefiting fromthis, nost of them from outside of the
ar ea.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Those are al
the speakers | have fromthe location in Springerville;
is that correct? |I'mlooking to Peaks Audio to confirm
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:. A | ady just signed
up - -

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: | signed up, they
didn't |l et ne speak.

AV TECHNICIAN:. M. Chairman, | think we
may have a couple nore. G ve us one mnute.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. W've been
goi ng for about 90 mnutes. | think the court reporter
is due for a break. Let's take an approxinmately
10-m nute recess and we'll cone back and continue public
comment. W stand in recess.

(Recessed from11:26 a.m until 11:45 a.m)

CHWN STAFFORD: Let's go back on the
record. | believe we have sone nore people signed up for
public comment in Springerville. So up next let's hear
fromlrene Sanchez. And then after her will be Peggy
M ner .

' mnot getting any audio. Still no audio
from Springerville.

AV TECHNI CI AN:. Can you hear ne now?

CHWN STAFFORD: There we go.

MS. SANCHEZ: Hello. Thank you for this
opportunity. M nane is Irene Sanchez, |-r-e-n-e,
Sanchez, S-a-n-c-h-e-z. | really wasn't going to cone up
here to share a comment, however, this is sonething that
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has not been addressed.

We had sone hi ghway construction on our way
to Show Low, and the traffic that was stopped and was
horrible, and | can't imagine what this interconnection
l'ine would do as far as traffic in and out of town,
ei t her through 60, 260, or even to Show Low.

| travel to Texas and | see the w nd farns.
| go hiking and | can see them when we go up into the
mountains. And | can't imagine howit's going to affect
our | andscape, which has been sonething that has been
comment ed on several, several tines.

| can't imagine what it's going to do to
our grandchildren and the rest of the people that wll
continue to live here after we are gone. So pl ease,
pl ease, please, stop this project.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Peggy M ner

M5. M NER  Thank you, M. Chairman and the
Comm ssi oners, but especially thank you to all ny fell ow
nei ghbors who have shown up here today to express their
feelings and informati on about this project.

There was sonething that was only nenti oned
briefly that | want to expand upon, and that's the fire
danger. | tried to go out on the National Wather
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Service site to get, |like, the nunber of red flag days
and they haven't updated their information for this area
yet, but they say that our fire season can be froml ate
February all the way through Novenber, nost usually from
April to Cctober.

And any of us that have lived here know
that we wal k on eggshells worrying that a fire's going to
start. So | really want you to consider what kind of
studi es woul d be necessary to nake sure we're safe.

Red flag warnings are issued when there are
sustai ned wi nds over 20 mles an hour. | honestly don't
know many days in the year that it's not over 20 mles an
hour, when afternoon humdity is | ess than 25 percent.
We're a desert, okay? And it's always |ess than
25 percent. And when fuel noisture is |ess than 8
per cent .

So we all know that we live in a tinderbox,
and we know that sparks off of this transm ssion |ine and
actual fires on the turbines thensel ves can cause seri ous
damage. And one of these projects is right next to our
nati onal forest. GCkay?

So ny questions to you, how do you fight a
fire that's 180 feet in the air or 600 feet in the air?
How do you fight a fire when -- in a wnd farm when the
w nds are 45 mles per hour?
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VWhat equi pnent is needed to properly fight
t hese and where would it be | ocated? Because none of our
fire stations are near where they're planning on building
t hese farns.

What liability will the County and the
State incur if there's a fire and |loss of |ife, hones.
Ckay? This technology -- I'"'mgoing to skip fromthe fire
because |'ve pretty nuch covered it -- but soneone
pointed out this technology is a dinosaur, okay? 1It's a
di nosaur. We can do better than this for our state and
our county and | expect you guys to do that.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Steve Treadway.

MR TREADWAY: Good norning. How are you?
My nanme is Steve Treadway, T-r-e-a-d-wa-y.

|'"ve heard a | ot of good things ny
Round Vall ey brothers and sisters have spoke of. | do
have sonme concerns. | want to rebuttal the contractors
|'ve heard that first spoke. All the jobs that they seem
to think they're going to create. Mdst of these jobs are
going to be, in mlitary terns, TDY. They're not going
to be here permanently.

We may have a few jobs here and there for
support, nmai ntenance, but they're not going to create a
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ot of jobs. The windmlls in New Mexico that were put
in, all those guys left. | haven't net anybody that
wor ks out there.

When sonet hi ng breaks, they have to cone
from Al buquerque. | think we should think tw ce about
this. If they really want to create jobs, they'd be
putting schools up to train sone of our young people to
wor k. Most of the people here that are technol ogically

inclined to do these kind of jobs, they're all retired

her e.

Thank you very mnuch.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Bill Jordan.

MR. JORDAN. Can you hear ne?

CHW STAFFCORD:  Yes.

MR JORDAN: Good. That's what | wanted to
know. My nanme's Bill Jordan, native Arizonan. | noved

up here, got out of the Valley, couldn't stand it down
there anynore. Sunk everything | got into ny place over
i n Vernon.

And |'ve been up cl ose and personal wth
these windmlls, okay? Over by Tuzion [phonetic], okay,
the animals are gone fromthere. They run the aninmals
out of there. They bl ocked off access to a | ot of places
that used to be able to go to.
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| tal ked to guys that were working on them
Stood right there and tal ked to one, and he sort of
sli pped up, because he said npost of themweren't even
hooked up, none of them were working. And | asked him
where the trench lines were for the cables, he said there
wasn't any.

So, apparently, you guys have figured out a
way to nmake electricity junmp froma wndmll mles away
into aline. And this is a fact. Because | was there
next to them They nade ne dizzy, gave ne a headache,
not just nme, but the guys that were with ne. And |'ve
wor ked construction for years, and there's no way that
you can't cover up or you can cover up a trench line for
cabl es.

You mi ght think you can, but you can't.
And this is all a farce anyway. They're nothing but a
bunch of butt ugly equipnent. And you knowit. You all
know it. You guys are nouthpieces for whatever
organi zation it is.

So I'"'mjust telling you that all these

peopl e, they're not just going to stand back and |l et you

run over them | know|I'mnot. And if there's any way,
any way possible, I'm hoping Trunp can wal k around you
peopl e and stop it. Because he knows it's all nothing

but noney, profit. They don't care about the people up
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here. But we do.

So you do -- you do what you got to do, and
we're going to do what we got to do. So | don't have any
specs or none of that other jargon, I'mjust telling you
what |'ve seen and who |'ve tal ked to. And when you got
guys working on them and say, they're just sitting out
there for | ooks, okay, that tells you right there. So
you do what you're going to do, and we're going to do
what we're going to do.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Linda Phil brook Bates.

MS. PHI LBROOK BATES:. Good norning. Thank
you for your tinme. 1'Il do the best | can. I|I'ma bit
nervous. | didn't plan on speaking, but | feel it's very
i mportant for us to get the word out here.

' mgoing to speak about water today. The
wat er tables here are a grave concern. W have no
specific information on just where Lava Run has nmanaged
to arrange enough mllions of gallons of water required
for the construction.

We have been told vaguely -- I'msorry --
for the construction and mai ntenance of not just the
i nterconnection line, but also for the whole wind farm
And | know that you guys want to contain our information
to the transmssion line, so l'll try to do that today.
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We have been told vaguely that it is al
arranged, and I'll air quote those words, and not to
worry, none of our local wells will be affected. There
is plenty of water. W sit on top of the Coconi no
aquifer, largest in the country.

Do you realize that when SRP was
constructed, nany area wells were drawn down and quite a
few had to be deepened to reach the water table or
abandoned? | believe SRP suffered a successful |awsuit
in Arizona. In the mdst of a severe, many-year drought,
nost | akes are at near or all-tine-low |l evels.

There are better ways to neet our power
needs with much less water. |If we fail to convince you
on the commttee that this project will be a disaster,
both environnmentally for the people and ani mal s who neke
this their hone, please do one thing for us all.

I f you do, and | pray you do not, approve
the interconnection |line, please nake it contingent upon
Lava Run or any other |ined-up conpany to be thoroughly
vetted with all the required permts and renedi ati on.
Remedi ation is the nost inportant thing, of the scal e of
| andscape danage, hol es along the sides of our vol canos
and spacious grasslands is also -- al nbst inpossible and
extrenely expensive.

The | andscape wll|l never be the sane. Wnd
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farns are falling out of favor in our country and around
the world due to their inefficiency and many of the
probl ems we're tal king about today. Coal, natural gas,
and nucl ear are gaining respectability and with Al
scientific advances, unpopular wind farns may be soon
out dat ed.

Many counties, sone states, and even ot her
countries are fighting and even shutti ng them down around
t he gl obe. Please do your part to save our environnent.
And, please, |'ve cone honme several tines to no water
because | ama California transplant -- sorry to say --
and | would like to say | didn't know ny pi pes were going
to freeze. So |I've lived wwth no water for a tine, and
pl ease do not California ny Arizona.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have David Tiedens. And if the
speakers could spell their | ast nane for the court
reporter, please.

MR, TIEDENS: Hi, ny nane is David,

Ti edens, T-i-e-d-e-n-s. So | oppose the interconnection
i ne and, by extension, the windm ||l farnms that are

pl anned for the area, this one and Black R dge. So I'm
an Arizona native, along with ny wife, and we noved up
here in the last few years to get away fromthe city, and
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ki nd of been a goal of mne to nove up here, because of
t he scenery.

And woul d have | have known that these
t hi ngs were being planned, | probably woul dn't have noved
here. So | am concerned since because of that it's going
to destroy ny property val ue, probably won't be able to
resell it, you know. | share all the sanme concerns that
have been expressed by everybody el se.

But | guess, to sumit up, that's ny
concern. You're going to put sonmething up that's going
to destroy God's creation, and |I think that's why nost
peopl e are up here and noved here is to | ook at the
natural beauty. And that's going to be gone.

Because if you start one project, you're
just going to fill that whole valley with them And it's
going to look like California and every other place.

So there's other -- there's other
I ndustries you guys can get into that will provide tax
revenues. You should | ook at energy that has a snaller
footprint, so we can preserve as nuch of the natural
beauty as possible, so that's the end of ny comments.

Thank you for your tine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Lisa Ronsick.

M5. RONSICK: Hi, there. M nane is Lisa
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Ronsi ck, R-on-s-i-c-k. | conpletely oppose the

i nterconnection line and | would beg you all to vote
against it. W -- |'mprobably going to get enotional,
| apol ogi ze.

We noved up fromthe Valley al nost five
years ago now, wanting to raise our children here, and we
homeschool and we go out and hunt, and we go | ook for
nmushrooms. And just on the way here there was an
antel ope and there was an eagle right where the whol e
proj ect woul d go.

And so for the sake of ny children and all
the other children up here on the nountain, | would beg
that you all vote against this |line and everything that
it nmeans for our nountain.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

M5. RONSICK (CHILD): W really want --

M5. RONSI CK: What ever you want to say.

M5. RONSICK (CHI LD): W're here because we
noved fromthe Valley. W really want to raise our
children here. W really want to raise our children
here. W noved here because we don't want to be in the
Valley. We want to raise our children here. W cane
here because we needed to. W really don't want these
w nd turbines. Please vote against it.

MS. RONSI CK: Good j ob, baby.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 250 VOLUMEYV 02/09/2026 842

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Marshall Bell.

MR BELL: Thank you, |adies and gentl enen
of the council. [I'ma third-generation --

CHWN STAFFORD: Can you state your nane and
spell your | ast nane, please.

MR BELL: Marshall Bell, B-e-I1-1, |ast
nane. |'ma third-generation electrician. M expertise
were in high voltage, large facilities, transfer
stations, substations, cogeneration substations.

' m here today because | want to tal k about
the health effects that | have seen in ny work and in the
others that |'ve worked around. Famly nenbers of m ne
have | eukem a, they've had cancers.

| " ve worked in substations to where you are
limted to your tinme in those stations because of the
frequencies and the effects of the hearing and of the
body. | have physically been in electrical roons that
have 12kVa to 4160 conmng into those, and you're |limted.
So | would consider the health risk and | would | ook at
t hese children that were just up here and consider their
health ri sks.

Thank you for your tine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next is Lori Coins.
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M5. GO NS: Hello, | am Lori Coins,

L-o-r-i, Go-i-n-s. | noved up here when | was a
teenager and it was -- this is a beautiful country that
we lived in, and -- and | want everybody to -- to live
here and be safe that -- and the aninals and the people
and -- and | just want everybody to be safe. | -- |
don't want them here either. And -- and | want all the

animals and the birds to be safe too, all the aninmals and
the birds and all the people that wants to live here.
Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Up next we have
Morgan MIlett.

M5. MLLETT: This is where | stand?

H, I'"'mMrgan Mllett, Mi-l-l-e-t-t.

|"mjust a four-year resident of the Wite
Mount ai ns, and ny famly noved here for the wildlife and
t he wi de open spaces. And | have three short points to
make.

At the | ast hearing Repsol was requested to
engage with the community. W have had no engagenent.

Second, Repsol was asked if they would
still -- still put power lines up if the wind farns
weren't approved. They said no. |f they could get that
in witing, that would be good. They have said that
they -- they have too many |l awsuits going on right nowto
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bel i eve them

And, third, public officials, please secure
the public that you are elected to serve first. You're
not elected to serve the greedy foreign corporations.

I n conclusion, if these power |ines go up,
| hope you all and Repsol can sleep at night, know ng
what you' ve done to our nountains and open spaces in our
comuni ty.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Up next we have Pat Mal donado.

MS. MALDONADO. Pat WMal donado,
Ma-l-d-o-n-a-d-o. So I'ma California transpl ant,
nunber one. | watched ny whole entire life California
bleed dry to feed L.A. County. Wy are we doing that for
the Valley? This is a beautiful place, and | don't
under stand why the people in our community and our
representatives aren't representing the community.

Qur problemis not the Valley's power
problem that's their problem California has been
abandoned, cities have been left behind, windmlls have
been shut down, power plants have been canceling
communities. Bottomline is continuously politicians
care nore about politicians and not about the people
they're serving.
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Secondly, the roads. | live here and I
work at the end of the town and all day | watch energency
vehicles conme in and out of this town on their way to
Show Low on both roads, and if there's any nore inpact on
our roads, it's going to be terrible. If your famly has
an energency, the last thing you want to worry about is
bei ng stuck in traffic for hours. | say don't do this.
Don't allowit. That's not why we cane here. Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

And up next we have Davi d Ronsi ck.

MR RONSICK: Howdy. M nane's David
Ronsick, that's R-0o-n-s-i-c-k. So we've heard a | ot
today fromthe people in the community, but |I'mactually
here to speak about a nmuch |arger comunity that nost of
t hese people they're famliar with, but aren't here to
represent thenselves, and that's the hunters of the
western states.

The area that you guys are proposing
putting this transmssion line through is right on the
edge of not only one of the best elk hunting areas in the
state, but in the U S.

The -- | personally know peopl e who have
put in to attenpt to get to hunt, just to attenpt to get
to hunt the area that you guys are tal king about here for
over 20 years.
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Peopl e travel all across the United States,
as well as worldwi de, to cone here just to have a chance
to be in these nountains, to be in these areas and in
these communities. This is one of the untouched gens of
t he west when it cones to back country hunting, when it
conmes to archery hunting, that people can only dream
about getting the chance to cone here.

So I'mhere to say on behalf of all of the
ot her hunters that have absolutely no idea that this is
goi ng on, that on behalf of all of them none of us want
this to cone through here. This is one of the nost
desirable hunting grounds in the west.

And if you do this and put this
transm ssion |line through, it is going to destroy the
dreans of thousands -- hundreds of thousands of hunters
who wi sh a chance at sonething |ike these untouched
mount ains. So on behalf of all of us, vote against this.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Now | et's go to the WebEx. | see
Ms. Barbara Schultz, do you w sh to nake public coment ?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFORD: Can you pl ease unnute? W
can't hear you.

MS. SCHULTZ: Oh, okay. Thank you. My
nanme is Barbara. | didn't know | was up to share.
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But | have been so -- so touched by
everybody's opinions. And | do agree, and |'ve seen,
driven all through California and seen what the w nd
farms have done to, | nean, places that used to be w de
open.

|'m 72 years old, and | just -- and this
area is truly one of the npost pristine areas in the
United States. You can't do this to them And the
gentl eman who just tal ked about hunting, true, absolutely
true, the fire danger is terrifying up here.

W are in a terrible drought. There is
just -- there's no way that you can protect the
Apache- Sitgreaves Forest with sonething |ike this.

You' ve seen the fires that go on in the dryness |ike all
t hrough New Mexico. We don't want that here. This
forest is not that big anynore. And sonebody el se

nmenti oned G eer alnost burned down | ess than a year ago,
| ess than a year ago, froma tiny little spark.

We had a 10-day forest fire that was
I ncredi ble and had people fromall over fighting it. W
cannot have that here. There's no way -- you can't
protect us fromthat. And as everybody el se said, there
are so many better ways com ng up to generate power.

And what about our water table? It's the
sane thing, | agree, we don't have any control over this
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wat er tabl e that keeps going down. W are trying to

|l egislate it, but we haven't done it, and it's -- there's
no water, okay? There's no water to fight the fires.
There's no water to run these things.

Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Are there any
ot her public commenters on the phone? | see a call-in
user 2.

(No response.)

AV TECHNI CI AN M. Chai rman, we have one
nore in Springerville who wi shes to nake coment.

CHWN STAFFORD: Pl ease.

MR. ROGERS: -- (inaudible) generation
native, nostly to the Wi te Muntains.

CHWN STAFFORD: Can you pl ease state your
nane and spell your |ast name for the court reporter.

MR ROGERS: Fred Rogers, R-0-g-e-r-s.

l"d like to talk a little bit conmmobn sense,
alittle bit about this. |[|'ve studied this a little bit.
|'ve had a little bit of information that's been given to
me, and all | know is normally when power is used, it
doesn't -- it doesn't cone out, it's -- the grid is like
this, it's up and dowmn. And when the power isn't
supplied, you get a brownout or a bl ackout.

Now, if you have a -- if you have a dam
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woul d you need nore power? You send nore water over the
dam t hrough the turbi nes, and that way you get nore
power; you don't have a brownout or a bl ackout.

Wien you need nore power to -- froma power
plant, you throw in nore coal and the power goes up, the
demand for the power is net; you don't have a bl ackout or
a brownout .

Whien you have a nucl ear plant, you pull the
rods, and it ups the power. And then you have -- you
don't have a bl ackout or a brownout.

Now, I'd |like to know how these windmlIs
wor kK when you need nore power? You just throw a switch
and you get nore wnd? |Is that howit works? No, it
doesn't work. Sonetines the wind doesn't blow Right
now it's not bl ow ng.

G her tines of the year, in the spring, we
get a |lot of wind, probably too nuch. Because right now
we have a problemwith the -- with the bark beetle
killing all of our oak trees, and we're going to have a
problemwi th fire danger when the spring comes. That's
t he probl em we have.

|'"d I'i ke to know who the guy was who
invented these windmlls? Because | don't think he was
very intelligent. He doesn't have any way to up the
power when the wnd's not blow ng, when it's in denand.
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Now, due to all respect, |I'd |like you guys to build these
butt ugly windmlls sonepl ace el se.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

All right. It is now 12:15. This w |
concl ude the public coment session. W wll break for
| unch and cone back here at 1:30, and we'll begin with
openi ng statenents fromthe parties. | understand that

t he Comm ssion has to switch out, there's a different
link for the hearing portion, as opposed to the public
comment. Wth that, we are in recess until 1:30.

(Recessed from 12:16 p.m until 1:43 p.m)

CHWN STAFFORD: Let's go back on the
record. W have concl uded our public coment session and
now it is tinme for opening statenents. W'Il|l begin with
t he applicant.

MR DERSTINE: Thank you, M. Chairman,

Menbers of the Committee. I'm-- if | was of normal size
| mght be able to see over this nonitor, but I'll have
to just assune that you're back there. And there, | see

a hand wave from Menber Kryder
So, again, good afternoon, Matt Dersti ne,
appeari ng on behalf of the applicants. Joining ne at the

table is M. Derek R eman, on behalf of the applicant and

Repsol. Mariana Anbrose is here, and then our M. -- how
could | forget your nane, |'ve been talking to you for
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days -- Jereny Casteel, who will be our -- was our

W tness during the siting hearing back in Cctober and
will provide testinony on the | and use issues that are
back before the comm ttee here today.

| wanted to just start and take a nonent
again, ny -- ny viewis obstructed by the pole here in
the hearing room but | wanted to acknow edge and
appreci ate the attendance of Supervi sor Shepherd,

Chai rman of the Apache County Board of Supervisors;
Supervi sor Shirley, Vice Chairman of the Apache County
Board of Supervisors; and Supervi sor Davis.

All three are here today, and we greatly
appreci ate their attendance. | know that they take these
matters seriously, and we appreciate themtaking the tine
to drive down to Phoenix and be a part of this
pr oceedi ng.

Also in attendance is M. Ryan Patterson,
who is the county manager for Apache County. And we al so
have M. Matthew Fish, who is the community devel opnent
director, who is here as well. And then we have
M. Anable, and we appreciate M. Anable seeking to be a
party and have his perspective and whatever his testinony
is heard by this committee and taken into account.

Let's see if | can use the technol ogy that
they've given ne with this clicker. | do have -- if they
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can tee up the slide deck. Yeah, thank you so nuch.

My | abel here is "The renmand heari ng, how
did we get here?" | think you all are well aware, but |
think 1'"d take a mnute just to rem nd you of kind of the
procedural history, the back story of what brought us
here today.

The applicants, CG Apache County Sol ar,

LLC, and CG Apache County Wnd, filed a joint application
with the Comm ssion for the Lava Run | nterconnection
Proj ect back in Septenber.

We had a hearing over several days before
the -- before this commttee, that was held on
Cctober 20th up in -- at the Hon-Dah Casi no, and we had
at that tine a lot of folks in attendance and gave public
comrent just as they did here today.

And | think the applicants recogni ze, just
as this coonmttee does, that public comment is inportant,
it's inportant to this process. W want to hear from
them and | think that this commttee has done a fine job
in terms of ensuring that fol ks are heard.

At the conclusion of the hearing back in
Cctober, this commttee voted 8 to 2 to approve the CEC
for the interconnection project. And | think it's
important to, | guess, nmaybe put a pin in the fact that
the interconnection project is a transmssion line, it's
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not the wind project, it's not the solar project. It's a
345-kV transm ssion line that will deliver the energy
fromthose projects, if they are approved through the
separat e zoni ng approval process in Apache County, and
deliver that energy to the Springerville Generating

St ati on.

The CEC was consi dered by the Corporation
Comm ssi on on Decenber the 3rd at its open neeting, at
which tinme the comm ssioners voted to remand the case
back to this conmittee for this hearing here today.

In | ooking at the -- well, obviously, | was
at the open neeting, | heard the comments fromthe
comm ssioners and reviewed their decision.

I"'mleft to assune and concl ude t hat
| argely what drove the decision to send this case back to
this commttee by the Comm ssion was the |etter that
M. Fish, the director of the devel opnent office, sent in
on the day of the open neeting asking that the Conm ssion
deny the CEC until|l applicants had applied for and
obtained a CUP for the project. Watever "the project”
nmeans.

And | think we'll have an opportunity to
delve into that a little bit with M. Fi sh when he's
called to testify. But | think what's clear fromthe
Comm ssion's deci sion and what this commttee well knows
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Is that the Conmm ssion and this conmmttee only have
jurisdiction over the gen-tie line, not the wind project,
not the sol ar project.

What's here on slide 5 in ny opening
sinmply, you know, restates the |anguage that's contai ned
in the Conm ssion's decision that the matter is remanded
for consideration of additional evidence on county and
nmuni ci pal | and use concerns and | and use inpacts in
Apache County.

And addi tional evidence about |and use
plans in the affected area of jurisdiction, that is
Apache County, it's necessary for bal anci ng need versus
adequate and econonmic reliable supply of electrical
power .

On that point, | would sinply nmake the
point that | think the Conm ssion well understands and
this commttee well understands that what we are
bal ancing are the inpacts of the gen-tie line, as
established in the record before this commttee on the
application for a CEC for the gen-tie line and not
bal anci ng or taking into account inpacts fromthe
separate wi nd and sol ar project.

Separate things. One, this commttee and
t he Conmm ssion have jurisdiction over the gen-tie, the
transm ssion line. You don't have jurisdiction over the
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w nd and the solar project, and consideration of those
factors is beyond the authority and the jurisdiction of
this commttee.

And, finally, as noted in the Conm ssion's
decision, this remand does not require applicant to
submt an application, nor does it require the commttee
to revisit the matter de novo. | know Menber Little was
not in attendance at the original hearing, she's
i ndi cated that there are sonme questions or issues raised
by nenbers of the public that she'd |like to hear about.

We' re happy to address those, but the fact
iIs that we're not presenting and going over all the
testi nony and the evidence that this commttee heard and
that was the basis for its decision on the CEC
appl i cation.

This case is, | think in a simlar posture
to another recent case that you heard, which is the
Bacarra Power Plant. | was not in attendance for that
hearing and | wasn't there for public coment, but | was
at the open neeting and | did hear fromthe nenbers of
t he public who were in attendance at the open neeting,
who, |ike today, raised a nunber of concerns, anger,
frustration, over the siting of that project near their
honmes, and in proximty to where they live and where they
travel and where they recreate. And fol ks expressed, as
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they did here today, their frustration and concern about
t hat project.

At the sane tinme, this commttee did what
it does in every case, and that is to |look at the project
that's before you, | ook at the project over which you
have jurisdiction, apply the factors fromthe statute 06
to the project, to the jurisdictional project, and then
vote accordingly. And | know that's what was done in
Cctober. And I know that's what will occur here today.

These cases are inportant. And, as this
commttee well knows, the siting of transm ssion |ines
and other infrastructure are critical to the state. At
the sane tine, it's inportant to take into account the
I npacts that these projects have, and to do what the CEC
does and what the various conditions do.

And that is to mtigate or mnimze the
i npacts of those projects, that is the jurisdictional
project, and | eave the nonjurisdictional project, the
w nd project, the solar project or whatever project the
transm ssion |line serves to the |ocal process, to the
zoni ng process at the County level. To the permtting
process to the extent there is a separate permtting
process that applies.

And just as in Bacarra, | think here, the
approval of the CEC for this gen-tie line in no way

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 250 VOLUMEYV 02/09/2026 857

underm nes the authority of the Apache County Board of
Supervisors to apply its zoning regul ations, its
renewabl e ordi nance to take into consideration all the
factors that are relevant to that zoning determ nati on,
and for this Board of Supervisors to vote on whether to
approve the wnd project or the solar project that's at
the end of the line.

But what's before you today is a CEC for a
transm ssion |ine that again does not underm ne the
authority of the Board of Supervisors. |t doesn't
restrict its authority, doesn't prevent the Board of
Supervi sors from doing what they do in every case, and
that is taking a careful consideration of whatever
project is before them whether it's a CU -- Conditional
Use Permt or other sort of zoning application, and
maki ng a deci sion on the separate nerits of that case.

So we're here, you know, pursuant to the
Comm ssion's decision, we're here to put on the record of
the | and use inpacts, much of it is testinony in evidence
that is already in the record that was heard by this
commttee back in Cctober, but we're happy to present it

again to address whether there's any new consi derations

or issues.
And at the conclusion of this hearing, of
this process, we will again ask that you confirm your
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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deci sion to approve the CEC, and then all ow Apache County
to do what it does in enforcing and applying its zoning
regul ations to the separate issues of whether or not
zoni ng approval should be applied and granted to the w nd
and the solar project. So | thank you for your tine and
we | ook forward to presenting our case to you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you, M. Derstine.

Next let's hear from Apache County.

M. Resare.

MR RESARE: Thank you, M. Chairman,
Menbers of the Committee. | appreciate you letting us be
a party to this -- this gathering today.

Qbvi ously, one of the things that Apache
County wants to have, and | think that, you know, is
sonet hing that can't be taken away is that ability for
t hose elected officials that have been voted in to have
i nput into what's going on in that County.

And that's a big deal, | think, to anyone
as Anericans, especially in our county as well. W have
lots of citizens, and you saw a | ot of those fol ks today,
that at | east have the perception that this approval of a
gen-tie line takes away, or | guess would autonmatically
approve everything el se.

And they may have at | east a point in that
that, you know, if this just gets approved, why woul dn't
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everything el se just get approved as well? And so, you
know, | think we -- you can understand where sone of
t hose folks are conming fromw th that degree.

And | think nmaybe one of the biggest issues
this board has, and naybe no governnment organi zati on has

ever been accused of having, is how efficient you are.

Because we're still at the very begi nning of our process.
| think we're still in the prelimnary phases of this
w nd and solar, where -- where these lines could | ead to.

And you're already to this point where
you're, |like, hey, we're going to be approving these
lines, potentially, and that's the very first thing the
public is seeing, is just approval to lines that are
going to wind or solar, potentially, and we have not had
t he processes out there. W' ve not been through any of
the traditional get fol ks out, talk about what's going
on, what's going in.

And that's obviously a concerning thing to
a politician, to a community, when you don't get to have
a say and it looks like, and there is a perception out
there that these are al ready bei ng approved w t hout any
conmuni ty i nput.

And, obviously, Apache County, since we
haven't gotten to a point where we've been tal ki ng about
t hese, because they're still in the prelimnary phases on
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the actual projects, we don't know what the Board of
Supervi sors will be approving or not approving or what
t heir opinions necessarily are on those issues, or even
our planning and zoni ng board, because they haven't
gotten that far yet.

And so our position in regards to this is
we do want to have that seat at the table in nmaking sone
of these decisions, and we understand that you do have
authority over the gen-tie lines and those type of I|ines,
and that those are not necessarily County i ssues.

And we do appreciate you wanting to have
our input and accepting that here today. But essentially
that's the County's position is take into account when
reviewing this, again, what the perception | ooks Iike
fromour citizens and from perhaps even the County. And
that, you know, the nain purpose is that we do want that
seat at the table. And, obviously, | think you folks
under stand and agree with that by giving us sone tinme
here to chat and to | et you know about that today.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

M. Anabl e.

MR ANABLE: Yes, sir.

Thank you, Menbers of the Commttee. Thank
you for letting ne intervene. Wiy |I'mhere is kind of a
strange, roundabout process, but in July of 2024, | sent
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Repsol, when | first found out about this project, | sent
Repsol a note and said, "Hey, |I'ma forner state | and
conmm ssioner, | know a bit about this, let's talk. |

t hi nk maybe we can work out sone of ny concerns.”
didn't hear back fromthem They didn't take ne up on ny
of fer.

So about a year ago | approached their
| obbyi st and said, "Hey, you know, Repsol should really
talk to ne," and the | obbyist said, "Well, | already told
themto talk to you,"” and they haven't tal ked to ne.

So here | amintervening in their rate
case -- or not rate case -- in their line siting case, so
that they can finally hear me. And what they're going to
hear is what | didn't know back in 2024, but | now know
is that this application is very premature.

| know the conmittee can't tell them when
to apply, but they have applied prematurely. They have
not submtted for you the studies, the evidence. The
things they reference in their application are not of
record. And so sonebody, who's |ike ne, who has been a
| and man his whole |life, doesn't have the ability to
adequately comment on their application, because the
information is not there.

As an exanpl e, and you heard this at the
| ast hearing, 40 percent of the CEC area has not been
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surveyed for cultural resources. It nmay have been by

now, but where's that information? 1It's not here.

don't have it. | should have it, right?
This is an ex parte thing. |f they have
it, I should have it, and | don't have it. So ny plan

here, if | get through interview ng these peopl e over
here, I wll get themto explain to you all the various
studi es that haven't been done or haven't been shown to
t he publi c.

The public is the other party in this, so
they also don't have the ability to adequately coment.
And that to ne is inportant. |'m not opposed to wi nd or
solar. As a matter of fact, in ny Ilimted appearance |
of fered no conpl ai nts about the solar project and |
suggest ed sone renedies for the wind project.

Repsol doesn't know it, but | spent half ny
career with state and federal governnent |and managenent,
the other half of ny career as a private consultant. |
was the first consultant -- | was a consultant on the
first wnd tower project here in Arizona, PPL Energy was
nmy client.

So, you know, | understand how these things
work, | could probably be hel pful, but |I have to be at
odds wwth themin order to be able to talk to them which
is kind of silly, but that's why |I'm here.
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Thank you for the tine.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

All right. M. Derstine, you have three
W tnesses to call?

MR DERSTINE: That's correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: And you'll be presenting
them as a panel ?

MR. DERSTI NE: Yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. M. Resare, do you
intend to call any w tnesses.

MR, RESARE: (No audi bl e response.)

CHWN STAFFORD:. No?

MR. RESARE: No, we do not.

CHWN STAFFORD: And you, M. Anabl e?

MR ANABLE: | had asked the State Histori
Preservation Oficer to nake avail abl e soneone to ne, |
reached out to themtw ce, and they have not responded.
So | do not have a wtness, but I was hoping to ask
M. Derstine to produce the SWCA archeologist if that's

at all possible.

863

c

CHWN STAFFORD: Their testinony may already

be in the record -- there was 27 exhibits fromthe first
hearing, and it appears that the applicant has quite a
nunber of new ones, up to 53 for the total exhibits for
t he heari ng.
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You'll be able to ask about those questions
fromthe applicant's witnesses when it's your turn to
Cross-exam ne them

All right. M. Derstine, would you like to
call your witnesses, and we'll swear themin?

MR DERSTINE: Yes. M. Chairman, our

w t ness panel will consist of M. Jereny Casteel,
M. Derek Reman, to ny right, and Ms. Mariana Anbrose at
the end of the table here. And they're available to be
swor n.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. M. Anbrose.

(Mari ana Anbrose was duly affirned

by the Chairnman.)
CHWN STAFFORD: M. Casteel.
(Jereny Casteel was duly affirned
by the Chairman.)
CHWN STAFFORD: M. R eman.
(Derek Rieman was duly affirned
by the Chairnman.)

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Pl ease proceed, M. Derstine.

MR. DERSTINE: Let's see, can we have you
pull up our slide deck?

CHWN STAFFORD: And the slides are Exhibit
CG 317
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MR DERSTINE: That's correct. That's what
| was fishing for so | could identify themfor the
record. So the hearing slides that we'll be projecting
here are marked as CG31. And then there are a nunber of
exhibits that will be referenced through the testinony
and we'll call those out as we proceed.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

MARI AN AMBROSE, JEREMY CASTEEL and DEREK RI EMAN,
call ed as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,
havi ng been previously affirmed or sworn by the Chairman
to speak the truth and nothing but the truth, were

exam ned and testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Casteel, you're going to start us off with
covering the various forns of notice that were provided
In connection with the remand hearing. You covered
the -- all the notice requirenents for the original
siting conmmttee hearing, but we have now new notice
requi renments that were issued by the Chairman for this
remand heari ng.

So let's go through those and | et nme have you
sinply start at a high level identifying the different
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fornms of notice that were provided, and then I'l|l have
you provide nore detail on each of those nethods of
notification.

A. (MR CASTEEL) Sure.

Good afternoon. Yeah, of the notice of -- the
met hods of noticing were simlar to what you woul d see at
any ot her heari ng.

We sent an informational postcard, provided an
informational enail, updated our project website, social
nmedi a, two newspaper advertisenents, the CEC naterials
were mai ntained at the two local libraries in Apache
County, and then public notice signage and notice of
filing list of affected jurisdictions.

Q And | neglected and -- to give you an
opportunity to give the conmttee a little bit of
background. They heard you testify back in QOctober, but
| think it's worth noting for the record again, just a
little bit about who you are, your background, your
education, and then your current role with this project.

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. |I'mthe CEC project manager.
|'"'ma | ead environnental planner with SWCA Envi ronnent al
Consultants with over 20 years of experience, and | have
a BA fromBowing Geen State University in
envi ronnental policy and anal ysi s.

Q And | guess while we're doing the introductions,
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M. R eman, do you want to do the sane, tell the
commttee a little bit about yourself and your role wth
t he project?

A (MR RIEMAN) Yes. M nane is Derek R enman,
chi ef devel opment officer at Repsol Renewabl es North
Anerica. | oversee the devel opnent of the utility-scale
w nd, solar, solar plus storage, and stand-al one storage
for Repsol Renewabl es.

| have over 16 years of experience devel oping,
siting, and constructing renewabl e energy projects across
the United States. | have a juris doctorate fromthe
Uni versity of Oregon with a specialization of natura
resource and environnental law. And | have an
under gr aduat e degree fromlndiana University with a B. A
in political science and mnors in business and Spani sh.

Q Ms. Anmbrose, why don't you take a m nute and
i ntroduce yourself to the conmmttee, please.

A (Ms. AMBROSE) Chairnman Stafford and Honor abl e
Menbers of the Commttee, ny nane is Mari ana Anbrose, and
|'mthe | ead project manager on the Lava Run
| nterconnection line, as well as the associated Lava Run
W nd and Sol ar Projects.

My background, | got a bachelor's in
adm ni stration and environnental studies from Bayl or
Uni versity. And | have nore than three years' experience
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I n renewabl e energy devel opnent. And at Repsol | focus
in the Desert Sout hwest.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Back to you, M. Casteel, we
went through the various notification nethods kind of in
a laundry list fashion.

You're in control of the slides, why don't you
start us out wwth the postcard that was sent to notify
residents, |andowners wthin Apache County about this
remand hearing, and nmaybe start us off w th expl ai ni ng
the notification, area where that postcard was sent and
how many addresses and how many fol ks received it?

A (MR CASTEEL) Certainly. The notification area
for the interconnection project was a five-mle buffer
centered on the proposed route.

That is the sanme notification area that we used
for the original hearing, and we suppl enented that
notification list not with just residents and | andowners,
but al so HOAs, and anybody who had attended the
applicants' Conditional Use Permt hearings and open
houses within Apache County.

So it's quite a conprehensive list and then we
added i ndi vi dual s who attended the hearing in Cctober.

Q And that postcard is found or has been
identified as applicant's Exhibit CG39; is that right?

A (MR CASTEEL) Correct. So during the week of
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January 5th, we did mail the postcard using the
notification |ist.

Again, that notification list was conprehensive,
not only did it include the individuals that | nentioned
but also tribal representatives, agencies, and
st akehol ders that have either commented or have been
i nvol ved in the project.

And then, as we just heard, that postcard

i ncluded the opportunity for public conment at the

muni ci pal -- Springerville Minicipal Airport.
Q And the notification area that you referred to,
that is -- the map of that is shown at CG 47?

A (MR CASTEEL) Correct.

Q Ckay. And, again, | think as you identified,
it's a five-mle area that surrounds the project, so in
many cases we're providing notice out a mle or so froma
proposed transmi ssion line project, in this case the
notification area went well beyond that out five mles,
ri ght?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. Much l|arger than typical CEC
cases.

Q Ckay. And you used that |arger notification
area because maybe the -- well, you can explain it, but
ny under standi ng i s because of the dispersed nature of
residents and | andowners, that is, we wanted to nake sure
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that as many fol ks as possible could receive this, but
wthin a mle we weren't catching that nmany addresses; is
that a fair statenent?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, it is. And that was on the
advi ce of the applicant.

Movi ng on, we have provided an infornmational
email to 27 individuals, those 27 were individuals who
attended the hearing but we did not have a nailing
address for, so | personally sent theman email with the
same i nformation provided, that there was the Notice of
Hearing, and within the postcard nailer. And again, that
emai |l al so provided the opportunity -- the infornation
necessary about the public session at the Springerville
Muni ci pal Airport.

Q And, again, just so | understand, there were
fol ks who may or may not reside within your five-mle
notification area, but we didn't have an address for
them and we only had an email address. So you
separately sent an email to those folks just to ensure
that they received notice?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, | wanted to make sure.

Q Ckay. D d we al so use social nedia and our
proj ect website to publicize this remand heari ng?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, we did. The applicant
mai nt ai ned their project website with the rel evant
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information for the remand hearing, as well as the public
conment session.

The graphic on the right appeared on the project
website, but the graphic on the right al so provided --
was al so provi ded via Facebook ad, a targeted Facebook ad
that ran from January 13th to February 9th, and again
announced the remand hearing, key events, details, and
directed people to the applicant's project website where
they could obtain transcripts and notices fromthe --
fromthe commttee.

Q And what you're speaking to is slide nunber 10
of applicant's Exhibit CG 31, correct?

A Correct. | just want to note that the Facebook
ad reached 7,100 accounts and had over 36,000 views.

Q And we al so, as we do in normal siting cases,

publ i shed the Notice of Hearing. G ve sone details on

t hat .
MEMBER KRYDER: M. Chairnman?
CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Kryder.
MEMBER KRYDER: Qui ck questi on,

M. Casteel. You gave us the nunber of Facebook

i nteractions, what period of tinme are we tal king, a
coupl e of days or how nmuch tine was this on a paid ad?

MR. CASTEEL: The ad ran from January 13th
to February 9th, today.
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MEMBER KRYDER: Which wi thout a cal endar in
front of nme that's, what, 21 days or -- | nean, back of
t he envel ope, is three weeks or four?

MR CASTEEL: W tried to get that ad up as
soon as, | think we had -- we had a deadline -- or we had
a rough deadline of m d-January, but we tried to get it
up as soon as possi ble, once we knew this hearing was
goi ng to take pl ace.

MEMBER KRYDER  Ckay. Thank you very rmuch.

MR CASTEEL: So yes, we provided two -- we
publ i shed two notices in the Wiite Muntain | ndependent,
the | ocal newspaper that serves the area. That occurred
on Decenber 30th, 2025, and then January 2nd, 2026.

Again, the |location, date, and tine for the
remand hearing and the public coment session was
pr ovi ded.

Q And the notice of publication or the affidavit
of publication is found --

MEMBER KRYDER: WMatt, we can't hear you.

MR. DERSTINE: Ch, sorry.

Q The affidavit of publication is found at CG 34;
is that right?

A. (MR, CASTEEL) VYes.

Q And that was a full-page ad, it wasn't half or a
quarter page?
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A (MR CASTEEL) That was a full -page
adverti senent.

Q And then we're -- the Chairman's Procedura
Order for normal siting cases requires that we place the
hearing materials, application, and transcripts at one or
nore library | ocations.

Dd we do that here as well?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, we did. W've worked with
t he Apache County library director to maintain hearing
materials, CEC application, all the -- yeah, the exhibits
at the two County libraries, the St. Johns Public Library
and the Round Valley Public Library. Al the materials
have been nai ntai ned on the docket.

MR. DERSTINE: Could |I have you pause
there? M. Chairman, | received a note so our -- this
hearing is being live streanmed through the Comm ssion's
| T departnent, who has done a great job getting us set up
here and maki ng sure that we have everything that we need
for this hearing, but | just received a note that their
feed has gone down and | don't know whether it's
appropriate that we pause while they' re reconnecting?

Let ne ask.

CHWN STAFFORD: | think we can proceed.
There's a court reporter here that is taking down the
testi nony, so --
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MR, DERSTINE: Al right. Thank you. Just
wanted to bring it to your attention.

CHWN STAFFORD: Pl ease proceed.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And you have emails confirm ng what was there at
the libraries or their recei pts and nai ntenance of those
materials and that's found in Exhibit CG 37, correct?

A (MR, CASTEEL) Yes.

Q Ckay. And we al so posted signs. There were
signs that were posted providing notice of the original
siting hearing back in Cctober, and I think we refreshed
those signs and maintained themin the sane | ocati ons,
but it had -- those signs carried new information on this
remand hearing; is that correct?

A (MR CASTEEL) That is correct.

Q Can you tell us about that?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yeah, the sane five |ocations that
we provided during the initial hearing, we just
repur posed those, and install ed new signage where
appropriate or -- we repurposed the materials, put a new
sign with current information and was posted at the sane
| ocati ons.

Q And evi dence of those sign postings is found at
CG 36, correct?

A (MR CASTEEL) Correct.
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Q And then the applicant is required to provide a
notice of the list of affected jurisdictions. M office
did that and submitted that to the Corporation
Comm ssion, and then the Corporation Comm ssion docket
control mailed out that information to the affected
jurisdictions. And then we al so copied various parties
on our -- on our notice list, and that is found at CG 35.

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. Correct.

Q Any ot her notice issues that we should address
bef ore we nove on?

A (MR CASTEEL) No, that was all.

Q Ckay.

MEMBER COMSTOCK: M. Chai r man?

CHWN STAFFCORD: Yes, Menber Const ock.

MEMBER COMSTOCK: If I may, M. Casteel,
there were a nunber of speakers this norning representing
the community of Vernon. In your expanded outreach,
during this phase of your expanded outreach, how nmany of
t hose addresses in Vernon were contacted?

MR CASTEEL: |'d have to look at the |ist
and see who was on there.

MEMBER COMSTOCK: Maybe | could ask it a
different way. Was Vernon included in the expanded
out reach?

MR. CASTEEL: They were not purposely
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included in the outreach. Vernon is approximtely 10
mles to the west of the study area.

MEMBER COMSTOCK:  Thank you.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q So our expanded five-mle notification area did
not include Vernon, because Vernon is -- the community of
Vernon is over 10 mles away fromthe corridor of our
proj ect ?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. And | guess | would say that
the community is aware of the project, as | think you
have seen, but --

Q Well, would they -- had they appeared, any
resi dent of Vernon, had they appeared and put down their
address and/or an enmil address for any of the public
coment sessions, | assune they woul d have recei ved
notice?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, they would have. Yes.

Q And is the geo area that was covered by our
soci al nedia ads, would that have al so i ncluded Vernon?

A (MR CASTEEL) It would -- I'd have to check the
zip codes -- 1'd have to check the zip codes that were

used, but the zip codes that were used are in the sane

area, certainly, Springerville, St. Johns, Concho. It's

all in the sane areas. So they would have to check, but

| would think that they would get notified as well, via
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t he social nedi a.

CHWN STAFFORD: M. Casteel, could you get
alittle closer to your m crophone, please?

MR CASTEEL: Yes. Sorry about that.

MEMBER COMSTOCK: Thank you, M. Derstine.

MR. DERSTI NE: Yes.

Q W wanted to -- | think the next chapter we have
here is | thought it was appropriate to go back and naybe
remnd the commttee of the -- what the interconnection
project is and what it consists of and where it's
| ocated. |Is that what's next?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. An overviewis next. You
all should have a placemat in front of you. |If not, |et
me know. One of those sides of that placemat is a CEC
corridor that we provided in the initial hearing, and
we'll talk through it now |'Il be talking for the next
several mnutes, so --

CHWN STAFFORD: Now, the photo, the picture
on the placenat was previously an exhibit, was it
attached to the application?

MR CASTEEL: Yes, | can get the exact
nunber for you. It's either A-1 or A-2, but I'lIl -- 1"l
doubl e-check. It was in the application.

CHWN STAFFORD,  Ckay.

MR CASTEEL: So the interconnection
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project is an approximately 27-mle | ong, 345-KkV,
alternating current generation tie line that wll run
bet ween the applicant's wind and sol ar projects and then
to the TEP Springerville Substation. There will be four
nonj uri sdi ctional project substations, the

I nterconnection project will be a single circuit as it

| eaves the wind facility on the western end of the study
ar ea.

And it will run to the applicant's sol ar
facility, where then it will turn into a double circuit
and then carry output fromthe solar facility and the
battery energy solar systemproject to the project, to
the Springerville Substation and, as we testified to, the
route is designed to minimze inpacts and plans to cross
exi sting roadways, transm ssion lines, and it will span
the Little Colorado River.

Just a qui ck note about the structures.
They are proposed to be tangent nonopol es, angl ed
nonopol es, and dead-end nonopol es. They will be either
gal vani zed or weathered steel, a maxi mum hei ght of 180
feet, and anticipated structure nunber is 200.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q Let nme pause you there for a m nute, because |
recall that Menber Little had noted in her opening
comments that the FAA cl earance for the project had
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expi r ed.

| want to nmake sure and make it clear for the
record, because the structures, as noted on slide 17 of
CG 31, are 180 feet, that the transm ssion structures do
not require FAA cl earance because they're under 200 feet;
is that correct?

A (MR CASTEEL) That is correct.

Q Now, t hough the FAA cl earance for the w nd
structures for the turbines, that has expired, and that
expires on a regular cadence, as | understand it, of
every 18 nonths, and so it's typical to have to -- for an
applicant to have to reapply for FAA cl earance for
turbines on a regular basis. And | think the applicant
and M. Rienman can speak to it, or Ms. Anbrose, but for
t he sanme reasons, the formal -- the FAA cleared the
original turbine that they -- the new-- it wll receive
t he cl earance again once we reapply for it.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you for that
clarification. | appreciate it. Check one of the
questions off ny |ist.

MR DERSTINE: Al right.

MR CASTEEL: On the screen nowis the CEC
corridor map. It's the sane one that's on your pl acenat.
"1l just take a mnute here to wal k through the route of
the i nterconnection project.
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BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q Let nme just note for the record that requested
CEC corridor map is Figure 2. It's contained in the
application and the application was Exhibit 1 to the
ori gi nal CEC proceedi ngs before the committee.

A (MR CASTEEL) So starting on the western end of
the study area, you'll see an orange square. Those
orange squares are the proposed substations. There's
four of them so starting at Substation 1, the project
travel s approximately a mle where it crosses
the -- crosses U S. H ghway 60, then it will travel

approximately 3.6 mles southeast, turn slightly

nort heast for less than a mle, and then we'll go
13.6 mles east where it will cross U S. 180, and w |
span the Little Colorado River. It will head north 3

mles and then East 1.7 mles to Substation 3.

Substation 3 is picking up power generated power
fromthe solar -- the applicant's solar facility, and
then it wll head north 1.5 mles to proposed Substation
4, where then a short segnent will go into the TEP
Springerville Substation.

Q And | think you're going to get into it in your
testinony on | and use, in jurisdiction and ownership, but
| think it's probably worth noting that in | ooking at the
map that's on slide 18 of CG 31, that all of the
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I nterconnection project, all of the transm ssion |ine
route except for that small segnent just outside or at
t he apron of the Springerville generating station is on
State Land admi ni stered by the Arizona State Land
Departnent; is that true?

A (MR CASTEEL) That's correct.

Q Al'l right. The Chairman noted at the outset of
this hearing, and | covered it in summarizing the
Conmmi ssion's decision sending this nmatter back before the
siting committee, that we are to address and provide
additional testinony on | and use i npacts.

You provided testinony on | and use inpacts in
jurisdiction and ownership, existing | and use, as well as
pl anned | and use in the original siting hearing back in
Cctober, but we're going to re-cover that here and then
we'll get into whether there's anything new or different
in the way of |and use regulations that the commttee
should be aware of; is that right?

A (MR CASTEEL) That is right.

Q Ckay. Let's see, | think you'll start us off
with jurisdiction and ownership. And sonetines we throw
these terns around and this commttee has a | ot of
experience with the term nol ogy and the issues, but what
we are covering here is you had the nap of the
transm ssion line corridor, you' re now going to explain
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who owns or controls the property that will be crossed by
the transm ssion line, right?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. W'I| get into that now. So
the project is entirely located w thin unincorporated
Apache County. The | and ownership associated with the
I nterconnection project is primarily State Trust Land
managed by the Arizona State Land Departnent, that's
approxi mately 90 percent of the interconnection project
CEC corridor.

The other 10 percent is Tucson Electric Power,
TEP private land. 1In reality, there's only a very smal
portion of the interconnection project that is on TEP s
property. It's a very snmall segnent that will go from
Substati on Nunber 4 into the Springerville Substation.

But, as you see on your CEC corridor map, we
drew a | arge envel ope around the Springerville Substation
in order to provide flexibility for the applicant to get
an interconnection into the substati on.

So -- so that 10 percent is 10 percent, but
it's -- inreality, it's a very small, very smal
portion. The nmap on the screen nowis a |and ownership
map showi ng the interconnection corridor -- project
corridor, as well as the study area that we used.

The -- | just want to nention that access on
State Land woul d be granted through ri ght-of -way
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agreenents. Access on private |land, TEP property, would
be through easenents that the applicant will execute wth
TEP.

Q The -- looking at slide 21 of CG 31, so | see
the transmission line route in the center of a dotted
line border, and that -- if | |ook at the | egend, the
dotted |ine border around the transm ssion |line route is
the study area; is that right?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, that's the study area.

Q And explain what that neans. Wat -- what is
t he study area and how is it used?

A (MR CASTEEL) So the study area was a one-mle
buffer around the interconnection project, center |ine.
That study area was used to devel op the studies that were
provided in the application.

Q Ckay. And by the studies that were included in
t he application, that would be biological studies of
plants and aninmals, as well as cultural surveys, visual
simul ati ons and anal ysis, inpact on recreation, all the
things that are testified to and were covered in the
record at the original siting hearing?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. The exhibits that were
provided in the application.

Q Ckay. And as well as your testinony at the tine
of the hearing?
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A (MR CASTEEL) Correct. The study area has not
changed.

Q All right. So you covered jurisdiction and
ownership, that is who owns the [ and or who controls the
| and t hrough zoning or in the case of State Land, the
actual ownership of and adm nistration of those |ands for
the benefit of the residents of the state and for the
state of Arizona.

| think what you're going to transition to and
di scuss now is, aside fromwho owns it or controls the
| and, what's the use that's being placed to the |and
W thin our transm ssion line path and wthin your study
area; is that right?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. W'IlI|l cover existing |and
use. This will be simlar to what we di scussed at the
pr evi ous heari ng.

So existing land use in the study area is rural
in character, and it's primarily undevel oped. W showed
the existing |and use as prinmarily vacant, however, we
covered extensively. W want to note again that the
study is used for cattle ranching and grazing.

And there are other |and uses in the study area:
| ndustrial, there's utilities, transportation, and then
while not a land use, the Little Col orado R ver passes
t hrough near the m dpoint of the study area.
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Q And by transportation you nmean roads?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, U.S. H ghway 60 and
U.S. H ghway 180.

Q And by utilities, you nean by that there are
other transm ssion lines that cross or pass through our
study area and are in proximty to the proposed route for
the i nterconnection project?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yeah, correct. Let ne junp
forward to the next nmap, the existing |and use map. So
there's a 345-kV utility line within the study area, as
well as a -- a transmi ssion |line, 345-kV transm ssion
line. And there's a 69-kV transm ssion distribution |ine
t hat passes through the study area. And then the
Springerville Generating Station and Substati on occur on
t he northeast portion of the study area.

Q " m | ooking at slide 23 of CG 31, that's the
pur pl e shaded area at the top right of the inage?

A (MR CASTEEL) That is correct.

Q Ckay. And what is -- the pink is you're
indicating the |land use, the existing | and use, which is
i ndustrial surrounding the Springerville Generating
St ati on?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. The pink is industrial, the
white that we have shown, we have identified as vacant.
However, the study area is used for cow grazing and
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ranching for agricultural use.

Q Ckay.

A (MR CASTEEL) I'd like to speak to --

Q Can you go back to slide 22? | think we noved
forward in response to ny question, but naybe cover the
rest of the content on slide 22 of CG 31.

A (MR CASTEEL) Yeah, wanted to cover Apache
County zoning. The study area is entirely zoned
agricultural general, and no rezoning approval is
required for the interconnection project. The
transm ssion |lines would be a permtted use within the
agricul tural general zoning.

That's according to the Apache County zoning
ordi nance, that specifically says agricultural general
zoning permts public and quasi-public uses, including
utilities.

So | wanted to touch on one of the prinary uses
of grazing, and we covered this at the line siting
hearing, | think it's inportant to cover again. There
are eight | essees with nine grazing |leases wth the
Arizona State Land Departnent in the study area.

The applicants are currently coordinating with
t hese | essees, are in the process of executing
construction i npact agreenents. Those construction
I npact agreenents wll be used to ensure the inpacts to
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access and grazing activities are avoided or mnimzed
during construction.

MEMBER KRYDER: M. Chairman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Kryder.

MEMBER KRYDER  Qui ck questi on,

M. Casteel. Thank you, M. Chairman. Wth regard to
the grazing, you said there were 10 | eases and nine with
di fferent property owners?

MR CASTEEL: There's eight | essees hol ding
ni ne separate | eases.

VEMBER KRYDER: Ch, eight and nine, sorry,
| had it wong.

During the construction, what kind of
l[imtations will there be placed on the constructi on area
where the cattle will be grazing? Just give nme a back of
t he envel ope on what your standard practice would be in
the construction period? | think |I understand after
construction if this is all approved and such, but if you
could add sone of that too, that would be appreciated,
okay?

MR CASTEEL: Sure.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And if that's sonething that Ms. Anbrose or
M. R eman should speak to, please feel free to ask them
to cover it.
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MEMBER KRYDER: Wbuld you rather wait,
M. Derstine?

MR. DERSTINE: No, no, we're happy to
address it now. | just want to nmake sure that you're
hearing fromthe proper w tness, Menber Kryder.

MR RIEMAN: M. Chairman, Menbers of the
Commttee, we wll coordinate with the grazing | essees to

ensure that the cattle that may be in the area during our

construction will not be inpacted by our activities, and
so that coordination will entail, you know, shepherding
the cattle into areas that will not be inpacted with

folks that are in the area wth the construction
equi pnent and the activities.

MEMBER KRYDER: Fol | ow up question, then.
That area generally, as we saw it on our tour back in
Cct ober, was not fenced and so would that mean that each

of the sites where the structures would be placed woul d

be fenced during, you know, drilling a hole, putting the
pi pe -- or the post down and the concrete curing and all
of that, this wll be fenced? O, | don't know how you

keep cattl e away, because there's no fences for a |ong
way out there, to ny vision at |east.

MR RIEMAN. Yes, we'll coordinate with the
| essee on what the nost effective strategy for ensuring
that the cattle are not in the area where the
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construction activities are involved. And in the event
that cattle guarding or fencing is helpful in limting
any potential inpact, we will do that.

MEMBER KRYDER: Many, many thanks. That
woul d solve the problem it would seem

MR CASTEEL: Just to sunmari ze the
existing |l and use, the record before the commttee from
the siting hearing established that the i nterconnection

project is environnmentally conpatible with existing | and

uses.
MEMBER COMSTOCK: M. Chai r man?
CHWN STAFFCRD: Yes, Menber Const ock.
MEMBER COMSTOCK: If we could -- if you
woul d help ne renenber, |I'msure we tal ked about it on

slide 26, just to the west of what is depicted as
Substati on Nunmber 3, there's an offset in the line there.
Was that due to |l and use or was that cultural study, what
pronpted that?

MR, CASTEEL: That is an existing cultural
site and the applicant's worked to avoid or m nimze
that -- that area.

MEMBER COMSTOCK: Thank you for the
rem nder.

BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q So you' ve covered existing | and use,
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jurisdiction, ownership, howthe land is currently being
used and the current zoning that applies to that | and.

| think the next topic in ternms of your
testi nony today and that you presented to the commttee
back in Cctober is planned | and use, like what are their
plans? Are there any existing plans for |land use within
our corridor that may be i npacted by our project?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes, |I'll get into planned | and
use and what we used to identify that as part of the
appl i cation.

Q Yeah, and | guess for planned | and use, can you
take us through what you typically would | ook at and
anal yze to gauge whether there's any planned | and uses
that may or may not conflict with or be conpatible with
our project?

What's the sort of exercise that you engage in
in order to evaluate planned | and use?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. There's a few things that we
do for these types of applications, is we eval uate
pl anned | and use, one of those is to review public
records, recorded plans, devel opnents within the study
ar ea.

Second thing we do is we contact planning and
zoni ng departnents of local jurisdictions to get a sense
of their planned devel opnents.
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We al so contact agencies, |like the Arizona
Departnent of Transportation and the Arizona State Land
Departnment to determine if they have any plans in the
study area or in the vicinity.

And then, finally, we | ook at conprehensive
pl ans and town general plans that outline long-term

devel opnent goals within the cities, towns, and the

counties. It's -- | think it's inmportant to note here
that -- that the County conprehensive plans and the

Town -- when | say "Town," | nmean, Town of Eagar and Town
of Springerville, which I'lIl get to in a nonent, that

they do contain goals and policy statenents, but they're
regul atory docunents and they do not inpose any direct
| and use restrictions.
Q " msorry, did you say they are regul atory or
they're not?
A (MR CASTEEL) They are not regul atory docunents.
As the Apache County Conprehensive Plan notes, it's
strictly advisory in nature. It is not a regulatory
docunent, but they are long-term-- long-term-- tools
for long-term planning for these counties and
muni ci palities.
CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Fant, you had a
question?
MEMBER FANT: Thank you, M. Chair.
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CHWN STAFFORD: Can you get close to the
m crophone? The court reporter can't hear you.

MEMBER FANT: Hear ne?

CHWN STAFFCORD: There you go.

MEMBER FANT: COkay. M. Casteel, we heard
sone public coments this norning about this area being
an el k hunting area. Springerville is a hub of high-end
elk hunting. That's -- that's known for a long tine. |Is
this area out where the line is planned, part of the area
where the good el k hunting is, and have you -- have you
made an effort to try and talk to any of the hunting
organi zations in the area about that?

MR. CASTEEL: So at the hearing we tal ked
extensively about this. | believe we have an exhi bit
that we put in on the final day.

The -- the gane units that are associ ated
with this interconnection project, | believe w said
were -- each of those gane units were |less than 1 percent
in total area of those gane units. | think the people
tal ki ng today were being specific about the east -- or
sorry -- west of the study area and being in the
nountains. That's where el k hunting woul d occur.

But as we al so di scussed at the hearing,
the applicant is going to work with Gane & Fi sh
Departnent to notify hunters, nake sure that people are
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awar e, because as one of the individuals nentioned at
public coment today, sonetines it takes a long tine to
get a tag. And we certainly don't want to ruin that
experience for sonebody. So there will be sone

coordi nati on that happens to make sure that when the
project does -- or the project is under construction, we
do our best to not interfere with those -- that tim ng.

MEMBER FANT: VWhich is all good, but have
you tried to reach out to any of the |ocal hunting
organi zations in Eagar, Springerville, or Round Vall ey
and talk with their nenbers about these issues?

MR CASTEEL: | don't -- | do not recal
t hat that has occurred, no.

MEMBER FANT: Ckay. And swtch subjects
slightly, still on wildlife. W had comments back in
Cct ober that the Big Lake antel ope herd conmes down here
and winters in this area. And | assune this nust be a
calving ground for the antelope if they stay into the
spring.

Have you had any conmmuni cation with fol ks,
| ocal biologists, et cetera, or Gane & Fi sh about the
antelope in this area?

MR CASTEEL: Not that |I'maware. But we
covered that extensively in the application and as part
of the testinony where there are wildlife corridors that
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occur, and how the project is constructed wll mnimze
any inpact that m ght have to be -- having the project be
per meabl e during construction. So that that passing of
ant el ope beyond U.S. 60 is not interfered with.

MEMBER FANT: |I'ma firmbeliever in |ocal
governnent, |ocal governnent should control about
80 percent of what we do in our lives, |local and County
gover nment .

Let nme repeat that. Have you talked with
any |l ocal biologists or organizations about the antel ope
in the area or their habits or what they do and what they
don't do?

M5. AMBROSE: |'Il speak to that question.
We have not spoken with | ocal organi zations within the
sout hern portion of Apache County regardi ng that specific
i ssue, but we did coordinate with the U S. Fish &
Wldlife Service and Arizona Gane & Fi sh regardi ng those
particul ar issues.

MR. DERSTINE: And | guess on that point,
Menber Fant, you may recall that the CEC that was granted
by this commttee contains an exhibit, Exhibit B,

Bi ol ogi cal M ni m zati on Measures for Lava Run CEC

| ncl uded in those mnimzation neasures is
a provision which mnimzed inpacts to pronghorn during
fawni ng season, May to md-June, that directly cane from
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gui dance from Ari zona Gane & Fish, and tal ked about a
construction schedule to be inplenmented to reduce the
anmount of area di sturbed during fawni ng season.

There're also within the mnimzation
nmeasures provi sions that say fencing associated with the
i nterconnection project will be mnimzed to the maxi mum
extent practicable, and wll foll ow recommendati ons of
Arizona Gane & Fish wildlife conpatible fencing
gui del i nes, as applicable and feasi bl e.

MEMBER KRYDER  Matt, pull your m crophone
down a little bit.

MR. DERSTINE: Ckay. Let ne get up cl ose.
s that better?

MEMBER KRYDER  That's better.

CHW STAFFCORD:  Yes.

MR DERSTINE: Ckay. Thank you. |
apol ogize. And then at the end it says -- there's a
provi sion that tal ks about no project disturbance wll
occur within the Little Colorado River and its canyon or
Coyot e Creek

As a subpart of that, applicant will notify
Ari zona Gane & Fish Departnent of the anticipated

construction schedule for the purpose of |essee hunting

notifications. Applicant wll post signs during
construction at the site entrance during -- directing
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hunters on safety protocols. And by January 15 of each
year of construction, the applicant will neet with
Arizona Gane & Fish Departnent to provide information on
t he constructi on schedul e as known and as it relates to
appl i cabl e hunti ng seasons.

And as M. Casteel testified, | believe it
was on the |ast day of the hearing, based on concerns
over hunting and inpacting a resident or soneone who has
obtai ned an el k tag, we showed that the interconnection
project, the transm ssion line covers just a very snall
area of the nost inportant gane units, and that these
then protocols for sequencing and ensuring that we
mnimze the inpacts during hunting season were included
in the CEC Exhibit B.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Little?

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you, M. Chairman.
I"'ma little bit confused on -- |I'm | ooking at slide 27.
It tal ks about conprehensive and comunity plans. And |
beli eve you said that the Apache County Conprehensive
Plan is not a regul atory docunent. It says that right
there in front of nme. And that rezoning nust be
consi stent with the County's Conprehensive Pl an.

So the conprehensive plan is just, this is
kind of the way we see things going; is that correct?

MR, CASTEEL: It is a great tool for
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| ong-term pl anni ng, yes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. Wat docunent
determ nes what will actually be all owed there today,
tonorrow? 1Is it the zoning?

MR CASTEEL: Yes, | would say that the
current zoning permts this use.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. But the next
statenent that says, "Rezoning nust be consistent with
t he County's Conprehensive Plan,"” so it's not a |law, but
it nmust be consistent?

MR CASTEEL: A rezoning, yes. W're not
asking for -- the project is not asking for a rezone.
The current zoning is consistent with --

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. But I'mstill a
little -- it's not a regulatory docunent, but it has to
be consistent with the plan.

MR CASTEEL: | see what you're saying,
yes, but | would just say that a rezone needs to be
consi stent wth the County's Conprehensive Pl an.

MEMBER LI TTLE: And then with respect to
t he Vernon Area Conmmunity Pl an, you have noted that it
was adopted by the Apache County Conprehensive Plan in
exi stence. |Is the Apache County Conprehensive Pl an what
I's being reworked right now?

MR. CASTEEL: |I'mnot aware of it being
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rewor ked ri ght now.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. Well, 1'll ask that
W t ness when they cone on the stand. But it does -- and
| notice on the map also it shows the interconnection
project located within the boundary of a broader
comunity plan. And --

MR. CASTEEL: | was going to cover that in
a few nonents.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

MR CASTEEL: | was going to give you where
t hat Vernon community plan cones into the study area.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. Because that was ny
concern. Thank you.

MEMBER DICICCIO M. Chair?

CHWN STAFFCRD: Yes, Menber Di Ciccio.

MEMBER DiCICCI GO Foll owup on that as
well. One of the questions that we had -- or that | had
was that the zoning was correct, but that you had to get
a Conditional Use Permt, and you said yes, you
definitely had to get that, correct?

MR CASTEEL: For the interconnection
pr oj ect ?

MEMBER Di CI CCl O For the interconnection.

MR, CASTEEL: No, it would likely
applicable for the wind and sol ar.
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MEMBER DICICCIO That's what | neant, |'m
sorry. For the wnd, let's say. And have you nmade
application for that?

MR CASTEEL: The application had not went
i nto Apache County for the wind facility.

MEMBER Di CICCI O So that has not been
subm tted?

MR, CASTEEL: No.

MEMBER DiCICCI O And then the Board of
Supervi sors -- the --

MR CASTEEL: County?

MEMBER Di CICCI GO No, us.

CHWN STAFFORD: The Comm ssion?

MEMBER Di CI CCI O  The Comm ssion, of

course, | keep getting all ny elected parts m xed up.
But the -- what was their request to you to go get from
t he County?

MR CASTEEL: For the interconnection
proj ect ?
MEMBER Di CI CCl G Yeah, so when it got
remanded back to us, what did they instruct you to do?
MR CASTEEL: Wwell, 1'd have to go back to
the letter that was filed. [1'Il let Matt --
MR DERSTINE: M. Chairnman, Menber
D G ccio, are you asking about the Decision fromthe
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Comm ssion or are you asking about M. Fish's letter of
Decenber 37

MEMBER Di CI CC0 G The Conmm ssion. \Wen you
were in front of the Comm ssion, they renanded you back
to us, but they had requested that you do sonething with
the County. What was that?

MR DERSTINE: | don't think that the
Comm ssion's Decision directed us to do anything with the
County. It requires and requests that we present
addi ti onal evi dence about | and use.

MEMBER KRYDER: Use your m crophone,
M ke -- Matt.

MR. DERSTINE: It asked that we provide you
w th additional evidence about |and use plans in the
affected area of jurisdiction, and that's what we were
doi ng.

MEMBER DiCICCI GO M understanding is they
sent you back to the County to get their perm ssion
or -- can soneone explain to nme what exactly did the
board do, or what is it that they wanted?

CHWN STAFFCORD: Are you tal king about the
Conmm ssi on?

MEMBER Di CI CC1 O  Conmi ssion. Correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: They just sent it back to
the commttee to get nore evidence about the | and use,
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like | said, it didn't require themto do anything with
the County, to ny understandi ng, the Decision was
referred back to us.

| think the Conm ssion did send a letter to
the County inviting themto participate as a party in the
process because they had not done that at the prior
hearing. And now, today, they are here today as a party.

So | think that was ny understandi ng of the
Comm ssion was that they really wanted to have the County
participate in this matter.

MEMBER Di CICCI O So ny understanding of it
was that they also wanted themto figure out whether or
not the County was going to be supportive of the project
or not, that was ny read of it. And if I'"'mwong, tell
nme so, but that would al so be applicable to the fact of
whet her or not they've submtted for the Conditional Use
Permt.

And that was one of the things | had
brought up as to whether or not they were going to submt
the Conditional Use Permt to the County so we coul d get
a read. | nean, you can't expect the County to nake a
deci sion on sonething if you' ve not submtted it to them
Do you see what |'m sayi ng?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, but | think the
distinction is that for the project that is before us and
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the Conmm ssion, there is no Conditional Use Permt
required. A transmission lineis a permtted use right
now. They do not need additional authorization fromthe
County for the transm ssion |ine.

The Conditional Use Permt namy be required
for the solar and wi nd projects under which we do not
have jurisdiction. And so the Commssion -- |I'm
virtually certain that the Comm ssion did not direct them
to get the Conditional Use Permt for sonething that's
beyond their jurisdiction as a part of this proceedi ng.

MEMBER DICICCIO So just, if | could add
into this as -- well, so | was an elected official for
al nost 20 years at the Gty of Phoeni x, and anything that
was controversial, they cane to ne. So let's take deed
restrictions, the cities, governnents don't have anyt hing
to do with deed restrictions, those are private contracts
bet ween the individuals, correct? So they are.

But | never, ever allowed a project to cone
to nme that had a deed restriction that was going to be
controversial, that was going to fail later. You don't
die on your sword for a project for anything, any elected
official, unless they' ve checked off all the boxes.

The reason |'m aski ng about the Conditi onal
Use Permt, you've had a long tine to do that with the
County is that -- you're asking elected officials from
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the County, you're asking elected officials here wwth the
Comm ssi on, to nake deci sions and help you nove it al ong
when you're -- you don't have it conpl et ed.

So, granted, | agree we don't have the
right to look at it, but as |ogical human bei ngs, we
shoul d be | ooking at, and we do | ook at things
conmprehensively. And if you haven't checked off all the
boxes and not done all the things, and | brought this up
at the last neeting, the last tinme you were in front of
us, | said you' ve got to do it all. 1It's controversial.

Because it's controversial, just checking
off the snmall boxes of what's required to nove in front
of us. And it bothers ne when people say, well, that's
all you can look at. No, we're human bei ngs, we | ook at
everything, we |l ook at projects in their totality.
Because that's just how we do things.

So to not even have nmade the application

for the Conditional Use Permt, which is part of your

requi rement -- not your requirenent in order to get
built, that just tells ne you're just, you're still not
fulfilling everything you need to do on sonething that

has controversy surrounding it, and you're asking those
i ndi vidual s, and you' re asking the individuals above us
to make decisions and fall on their sword on sonet hi ng
that may never happen. So fromny end of it, | think
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that that's just a mnimumrequirenent. You just
go -- you should have done that.

MR DERSTINE: M. Chairnman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Fontes, you have a
questi on?

MEMBER FONTES: M. Chairnman, |I'mgoing to
di sagree with Menber DiC ccio. 1've been on this
commttee for over two years and |'ve never seen a
conditional permt at the County | evel or other presented
as a precondition for a gen-tie line.

Gven that it's nonjurisdictional, | think
we're dealing with sonmething that doesn't fall under the
statute. Gven I'mnot a lawer, | think we need sone
gui dance on that fromyou, but follow ng what we have
done in the past, and all of the things that | had voted
in favor or unfavor for, | don't think that that has
rel evance here what soever.

MEMBER HI LL: M. Chair?

CHWN STAFFORD:. Menber Hi | .

MEMBER HI LL: Thanks. W see projects in
different orders all of the tine, and | think that's the
struggle is, | nean, even -- |like Pinal County has a | ot
of projects and their conprehensive plan anmendnents are
often not even conpl eted for another year before we've
even approved the gen-tie lines or the transm ssion
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lines. | think it's a struggle.

l'd like to see nore alignnent, but to
Menmber Di Ciccio's coments, | don't feel like -- the only
peopl e asking the County to be here is the Conm ssion.
They required, you know, they basically said the County
needs to have input and we're asking themto partici pate.

| don't think we're asking themto
participate -- although | think nore counties shoul d
participate, |I don't think the applicant is asking the
County to participate in this proceeding. They have a
separate process to go through with the County.

| think I was nost surprised that the
Cor porati on Conm ssion pushed this back for our
consi deration and then said you need to take nore
evi dence fromthe County.

And then we were |ike a quick, do you want
to be here? Are you ready to have that conversation? |
just -- | think this is unusual. | think -- | appreciate
M. DiCGccio' s passion around aligning them-- these
deci si on-maki ng processes. And |I'mhappy to talk to
anyone about statutory changes. | would |ove to have a
t eam of peopl e who now have experienced all this and we
could work together to create that alignnent, but that's
not where we are.

But the narrowness of the Corporation
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Comm ssion telling us to take nore feedback fromthe
County is where we're at. And | don't put that on us,
and | don't put it on the applicant, frankly. |

think -- | feel like we're here because the Corporation
Comm ssion told us we had to do this, and all of us
needed to have this conversation. | don't know that
everyone is ready to have this conversation. | don't
know if the wind or solar stuff is ready for a
conversation with the County. [It's not our jurisdiction.

" mnot even sure that the County is al ways
ready to have the conversati on about the wind or the
solar. | think, ny understanding is they' re working on
their ordinances. So | just want to push back a little
bit and say we're here because the conm ssioners told us
that we're here, not -- not us -- not us wanting to be
here and not the applicant, you know, saying | need nore
time with the County, so --

MEMBER DICICCIO M. Chair?

MEMBER HI LL: -- thanks for indul ging ne.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you, Menber HiIl.

Menber Di Cicci o.

MEMBER DiCICCI O My pushback here, so from
my end of it, when the Conm ssion tells you to take it
back, I"'mall good they did that, because what they're
doing is they want to get nore information.
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One of the things that cane out in our
nmeeti ng was ne aski ng whether or not they had a
Condi tional Use Permt requirenent. They said yes, they
di d.

And if they did, they should have put in an
application at |least, at the very least with the County.
| even asked the question, | said, "Did you neet wwth the
County?" Did they give you a yes or no?" They said,
"Well, they didn't tell us anything."”

So when a County is not ready to make that
type of decision, what the Comm ssion is asking for is
they want a conpl ete package, they want everything done
ahead of tine, and whether we are required to ask of them
or not, is just part of the deal. GCkay?

Like | said earlier, there are nany tines
where |'ve nmade people do things to finish off, bring ne
a conpl eted package, bring everything in before you ask
individuals like this to nake a deci sion on your project
and the Conmm ssion to nmake a deci sion.

And you've got to go past just the bare
m ni mrum just checking off the boxes. And | don't even
know i f you' ve conpleted all those boxes because sone of
t he things we brought up at the | ast neeting was the fact
that what you did was you said, okay, we checked off
t hose boxes, but that doesn't nean you're participating
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and getting the individuals to participate in the
deci si on- naki ng process with you.

Li ke M. Anable over here, | nean, this is
one of the top guys in the state of Arizona who had
repeatedly reached out to you, and | don't know what's
occurred, I'mgoing to hear your side of it, but reached
out and said, "Hey, let nme try to make your project
better."

That didn't -- that conmunication did not
happen. He has to cone to this neeting here, according
to his testinony. W wll hear your end of it, what you
have to say about it, but he has to conme to this neeting
just to get an audience. | think that is just crazy.

That just tells ne you're checking off the
boxes, you are not going through -- you're not taking the
extra steps on sonething that's controversial and you're
asking elected bodies to fall on their sword for you when
you're only doing the bare mninum That's problematic.

Thank you, M. Chairman.

MEMBER FONTES: M. Chairman, it's
problematic that we're manufacturing requirenents here.
|'"d like to go back to what the Comm ssion required us to
do, because | think we need to focus on that here.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

MEMBER MERCER: M. Chairman?
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CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Mercer.

MEMBER MERCER: |'m goi ng back to, | took
notes of, like, six -- six pages of notes fromthe public
comments, and | have one, two, three, four, five, six
questi ons.

One, one comment was that this project
woul d only benefit Tucson. |I'mfrom Tucson. |'d be
grateful if it benefits Tucson, but | want the applicant
to explain what that coment is or if it's way off.

MR, DERSTI NE: Menber Mercer, could you

restate the comment that you wanted us to address? M

apol ogi es.

MEMBER MERCER: One comment was that this
project will only benefit Tucson, because TEP is one of
the gen-tie -- yeah, |'msorry, can sonebody el aborate on

why was that comment nmde or is it off on left field?

MS. AMBROSE: Menber Mercer, |'m happy to
answer your question. So our -- our primary entity that
we're engaging with to I ook for offtake is Tucson
El ectric Power, TEP, and that is the provider that we do
have a LA A with, which is the Large Generator
| nt erconnecti on Agreenent. The flow of el ectrons,
ultimately, we do not get to dictate that, so that's
where the demand goes, but that area that's served by TEP
| argely woul d be our target | ocation.
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MEMBER MERCER: Ckay. The ot her conmment
was Apache County will not benefit fromthis project. 1Is
that -- goes with the Tucson-only benefit?

MS. AMBROSE: The benefits of the project
will ultimately stay local, |like the tax revenues that
come fromthe project, as well as our |larger comunity
I nvest ment program so that stays local. That woul d not
go to Tucson.

MEMBER MERCER:  Anot her comment was the
ar chaeol ogi cal report did not cover the whol e inpacted
ar ea.

MR. CASTEEL: Yeah, the applicant is
currently finishing the cultural resources survey, what
we refer to as a dass IlIl cultural resources inventory.
It is approximately 60 percent surveyed, neaning the
corridor is still approxinmately 60 percent surveyed.

The right-of-way that will |ikely be
procured from State Land is surveyed, and the applicant
Is out there surveying areas around pole lines -- pole
areas, substations, but they wll end up surveying that
remai nder of area in the CEC corridor prior to
constructi on.

And, | nmean, | think it's inportant to note
that -- | nmean, | think you' ve seen |ots of CEC
applications cone through here where no surveyi ng was
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completed, and so | do feel |ike we're above and beyond
where you mght normally see where we have a great
under st andi ng of what is out there, and those site

| ocations. And the applicant's archeol ogi st recently
went back out and renapped the known sites just to neke
sure we had those boundaries correct, because they're in
t he planning stage of the tower |ocations or the
structure | ocations.

So we do have a great understandi ng of what
is, in terns of what archaeol ogical and historical sites
that are in the CEC corridor at this tinme, and they wl|
finish that corridor 100 percent.

MEMBER MERCER: Thank you. Anot her comment
was these technol ogies are archaic. WlIl, actually, the
comment was that this technology is a dinosaur,
what -- any comrents or clarification about that?

MR RIEMAN. M. Chairnman, Menbers of the
Commttee, this technology is being utilized and depl oyed
across the United States effectively to generate cl ean,
renewabl e energy, and so with that | woul d suggest t hat
is well-proven technol ogy.

MEMBER MERCER: Thank you. Anot her
comment, and we hear this one over and over on different
heari ngs, health issues. People are concerned about
health issues, and I'm not tal king about the animals that
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get killed or anything |ike that.

Some nenber of the public comented about
cancers. |Is that a valid concern? Sonething that has
been proven? I'm-- I'mthe kind of person that wants to
see proof, show ne the facts, show ne the noney.

MR RIEMAN: M. Chairman, Menbers of the
Comm ttee, there have been studies that have been
performed that detail no scientific link between w nd
turbi ne and health issues with the public.

MEMBER MERCER: Thank you. And ny | ast
one. Apache County says that they want to have a seat on
the table. Cbviously we -- this conmttee does not have
jurisdiction over what the applicant has to do with the
County.

We are here to see, as has al ready been
di scussed, so | guess I'mtrying to find out what exactly
does Apache County want or needs.

M5. AMBROSE: Menber Mercer, is that a
question for Apache County or a question for us?

MEMBER MERCER: \Whoever can answer t hat
questi on.

M5. AMBROSE: | believe Apache County woul d
be the best to answer that question, but --

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, | think that is a
ni ce segue, Menber Mercer, we are com ng up on
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90 mnutes, so it's tinme for our break to give the court
reporter. | think when we return, we have Matt hew Fi sh
her e.

MR FISH  Yes, sir.

CHWN STAFFORD: Excellent. He's been
subpoenaed to testify, so | think the nost appropriate
next step would be to call himto the stand, swear him
in, and then the nenbers and the parties can ask himthe
questi ons about what indeed is the intent of the County.

MEMBER MERCER  Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Let's take a 10-m nute
recess, and we'll cone back and swear in M. Fish.

(Recessed from3:13 p.m until 3:30 p.m)

CHWN STAFFORD: Back on the record.

THE REPORTER: Is it on?

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. 1Is that better?
There we go.

All right. The commttee calls Matthew
Fish to the stand.

/1
/Il
/1
/1
/1
/1
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MATTHEW FI SH,
called as a witness on behalf of the Intervenor Apache
County, having been previously affirned or sworn by the
Chairman to speak the whole truth and nothing but the

truth, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

EXAMI NATI ON

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

Now, you filed a letter in the docket, |
think it's been marked as Exhibit CG 48.

MR FISH  Yes, | did.

CHWN STAFFORD: Do you have that docunent?

MR FISH | can pull it up. | do have the
docunent .

CHWN STAFFORD: |Is that a true and correct
copy of the letter that you filed in this docket?

MR FI SH: It is.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. Now, you serve as
the director of the Apache County Community Devel opnent ?

MR FISH: Yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: And what is their role in
t he process of permtting or zoni ng?

MR FISH  The goal of the community
devel opnent or the goal of the County as a whol e?

CHWN STAFFORD: The community devel opnent
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gr oup.

MR FISH  To Menber H |l and Menber
DiCccio' s points, it's difficult, because by the
applicant's own adm ssion, there hasn't been a whole | ot
of communi cati on between the applicant and ny depart nent
and the County. So the goal is, as stated before, to
have the County, ny departnent, have sone input as to the
direction of the -- of the entirety of the project, not
just the line -- or the transm ssion |line.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Hill.

MEMBER HI LL: Thanks, M. Chair. CQur
jurisdiction is the line, so | guess what | was hoping to
hear fromyou guys today is just, relative to the I|ine,
what do we need to know, because | don't think there's
any permtting process for that, so this is |like the only
pl ace that we do a permt around this |ine, because you
guys allow this by right, like in any of your zones.

What do we need to know about this Iine
that the County would like to see or would like for us to
consider and the design, its routing, its mtigation, or
are there things that would i nprove the Certificate that
we' ve | ooked at that would be hel pful to the County?
Because that's all | can ask about, really.

MR FISH First of all, | would like to
say the County does recognize the authority of this
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commttee. W're not -- we're not disputing that in any
way, shape, or form

Second of all, specifically with the |ine,
t he County does not have any specific input or any design
changes or anything that we would |i ke to request.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Has the applicant
approached the County with just infornmation, we're
pl anni ng on doing this.

MR FISH: Yes, there has been -- | nean,
the applicant, this is a long process. This has taken
approxi mately three years to get to this point, so there
has been communi cati on between the applicant and ny
departnent, and then in turn, | relay that to ny boss and
hi s bosses.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Can you tell ne what the
nature of that conmuni cation has been with regard to the
i ne?

MR FISH Wth regard to the |line,
it's -- the information that you have before you today,
this is the general location, this is howfar, this is
the nature of the line, that sort of thing.

MEMBER LI TTLE: And they don't, from what |
under stand, they don't require anything el se fromyou as
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far as no zoni ng changes, no plans of action, nothing
i ke that?

MR FISH  For the line specifically,
ultinmately | would say no, our ordinances do say with a
W nd- specific project or a solar-specific project, they
woul d need a Conditional Use Permt, section --
utility-scale energy project 437 talks a little bit about
the project as a whole, we feel |ike should be covered
under the conditional use project [sic], and we woul d be
considering the line to be part of the project as a
whol e.

MEMBER LI TTLE: So when they bring to you,

which | assune they will, the -- the request for a
Conditional Use Permt, at that time you will consider
the line as a part of the -- of the whole project?

MR FISH  That would be correct. That's
how it's been done in the past.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Okay. Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. M. Fish, the
letter you submtted, did you submt that on behal f of
the County as a whole or just as part -- on behalf of the
Apache County Community Devel opnent ?

MR FISH As the letter states, it's on
behal f of Apache County Conmunity Devel oprent.

CHWN STAFFORD: So, to your know edge, does
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the County agree with the position asserted by community
devel opnent in the letter?

MR FISH: There has been no di scussi on,
nor woul d there be discussion, between nyself and the
t hree supervi sors because to date they have nothing to
eval uat e.

CHWN STAFFORD: And for the purposes of the
line, there's -- there's nothing for themto evaluate. |
mean, it seens |like they're going to need a Conditi onal
Use Permt for the wind and solar facilities, but for the
transm ssion line itself they need no other perm ssions
fromthe County to construct the |ine?

MR FISH.  Again, yes.

CHWN STAFFORD:. Gkay. Thank you.

MEMBER HI LL: M. Chair?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Hill.

MEMBER HILL: The -- I'mtreading carefully
here, because | don't want to be nonjurisdictional, but
the Conditional Use Permt process for an el ectrical
generation in the county, is that currently under review,
is it changing?

Because | -- | just want to understand
where you guys are in the process of permtting this, and
if it is we haven't received an application and we're
review ng the ordi nances, then that woul d be hel pful
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context for us.

MR FISH W currently have an exi sting
ordi nance, as it stands we have an exi sting ordi nance.
We are in the process of possibly rewiting that
ordi nance. That has not been decided yet, that is still
in the Planning and Zoni ng Conm ssi on process.

MEMBER HI LL: So you've not had any
hearings on rewiting that, it's just sonething you guys
are contenpl ati ng doi ng at sone point?

MR FISH Correct. It is in the process,
t here have been several drafts presented to the Planning
and Zoni ng Conm ssion to the public and Apache County.
But not hi ng has been -- has been recommended to the Board
of Supervisors as of yet.

MEMBER HI LL: Ckay.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Di G cci 0?

MEMBER HI LL: OCh, | had --

CHWN STAFFORD: Oh, | thought you were

done.

MEMBER HI LL: | apol ogi ze.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Hill.

MEMBER HI LL: Just one followup to that.
Ils there a tineline -- you started it, is there a

tinmeline for finishing any revisions to that?
MR FISH  Qur hope is to have that
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possi bly done and to the Board of Supervisors for
recomrendati on probably by April or May.

MEMBER HI LL: Okay. That's helpful. Al
ri ght, thanks.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Di G cci 0?

MEMBER Di CI CCl G Just a coupl e questions.
So, M. Fish, have any applications or any Conditional
Use Permt, because that is a requirenent, been requested
of the County yet or from your departnent?

MR FISH  Specifically for -- for CG Wnd
and Sol ar?

MEMBER Di CI CCI O Yes.

MR. FISH  They have not submtted a
condi ti onal use application yet.

MEMBER DICICCI GO So in your Conditional
Use Permt process they have to submt conplete plans,
you have to know everything about the project. R ght now
you're getting information the sane way any citizen is
getting information, they may be neeting with you, but
you're getting information the sane way as that, correct?

MR FISH: Correct.

MEMBER DICICCIO So if they did submt

their application, they would be under the rul es today,

and if they do change, if they're still in process, |
woul d i magi ne they have to change over -- they woul d have
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to cone under the new regulations in April or My or
what ever it is you' ve got going on, correct?

MR FISH In theory, yes.

MEMBER DiCICCI O So ny question would be
to the applicant, why have you not submtted it? Am]
all owed to ask himthat?

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, not at this point,
this is the witness that's on the stand ri ght now.

MEMBER DICICCIO That's true. |[|'ve got to
| earn process. So -- all right. That's good enough.
Thank you, M. Fish.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Do t he
parties --

MEMBER HI LL: Can | --

CHWN STAFFORD: Onh, Menber H I 1.

MEMBER HI LL: Sorry, | just want to ask a
coupl e questions just because we got public comment about
the Conditional Use Permt process. It did feel like a
| ot of the public comment was nore about the wind farm
than it was about the transm ssion, and the things that I
heard | think nost commonly -- | nade notes and then ny
conputer just shut nme out -- but | think the things that
| heard, the nbst common concern about is |ike
decomm ssi oni ng plans, surety bonds, you know, Gane &
Fish mtigation nmeasures.
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How -- how -- how are those, like -- until
| get ny conputer back on, I"'mgoing to need a mnute --
but how are those three things treated in your
Conditional Use Permt? Do you feel |like those things
wi Il be addressed? The citizen coments woul d be
addressed with your Conditional Use Permt process?

MR FISH: Yes.

MEMBER HI LL: Ckay. That's great.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. M. Derstine,
do you have any questions for this w tness?

MEMBER KRYDER: M. Chairman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Kryder.

MEMBER KRYDER: Just as a followup with
Menber Hill. M. Fish, although the | and goes through
Apache County jurisdiction, it is actually Arizona public
land, is it not? | nean, for the line siting portion of
it?

MR FISH Yes, | believe the applicant's
already testified to that, at |east 90 percent.

MEMBER KRYDER: Much nore than that, yes.
Close to 95 percent of it. And so how does that inpact,
as |'ve read the pro fornma Arizona | and contracts that
ot her applicants have signed, | think they're simlar,
they're probably not exact, but that addresses
I ndemmi fication, insurance, on and on, the whole | aundry
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list of the concerns that | heard fromthe public this
nor ni ng about cl eanup after deconmm ssi oni ng, and damage
to the environnent because of roads and so on. That's
all covered as |I've read at least in the Arizona | and
contract.

How, then, does Apache County play into
that if it's under the contract with Arizona |and, but it
passes t hrough, obviously, Apache County? How woul d that
play out? Wuld you be witing additional conditions?

MR FISH  Are we speaking specifically for
the transm ssion |ine?

MEMBER KRYDER: Yes, absol utely.

MR FISH  That is a hypothetical |'ve not
t hought of, but at this point in tine, | would probably
say no, we would not be addi ng additional regul ati ons.
Just sinply because this board and the Arizona
Cor por ati on Conm ssi on have jurisdiction over that.

MEMBER KRYDER: | think that -- that hel ps
nme at | east understand sone pieces and parts of this,
that is, if the applicant is going to |ease |and for the
line siting conm ssion fromthe Arizona | and group, then
| -- and if, as | heard you correctly say a nonment ago,
Apache County would not likely be adding additional terns
to that contract, |limtations on insurance, blah, blah,
bl ah, whatever the concerns were, then in a sense, the
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applicant's relationship with Apache County vis-a-vis the
line that we're talking that is our jurisdiction is done
as soon as the applicant -- excuse ne -- as soon as the
applicant deals with Arizona |and -- what's the proper
nanme, M. Chairnman?

CHWN STAFFORD: The Arizona State Land
Depart nent .

MEMBER KRYDER: Yes, as soon as the
applicant would deal with the Arizona Land Depart nent,
and i f Apache County is not going to add conditions to
t hat piece, voila. O aml wong? Tell ne.

MR FISH  Menber Kryder, |I'm not an
attorney, sol -- | wouldn't begin to answer the |egal
precedence, if we could or could not add conditions to
what ever the State Land Departnent, what this -- what
this board, what the Arizona Corporation Conm ssion does.
| do not think that that's legally sonething that we
coul d do.

MEMBER KRYDER: And we certainly did not
add anything as a condition to our CEC that we worked on
in Cctober. Because we, too, do not have the
jurisdictional right to tell the Arizona Land Depart nent
what to do and what -- so that's strictly a contract
bet ween the applicant and the Arizona | and managenent
group, |I'msorry, | --
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MR. FISH  Arizona Land Departnent.

MEMBER KRYDER: Land Depart nent.

MR FISH M. Kryder, just one point, if I
may, just back to --

MEMBER KRYDER: Pl ease.

MR FISH -- Menber DiCccio' s point, that
Is sort of the gray area, the heart, the chicken and the
egg, the horse before the cart, Arizona Revised Statutes
11-802(a) clearly says that the State and the | ocal
jurisdictions should work together. | believe that
precedence has probably been set since 1914 when the
State was -- cane into existence.

MEMBER KRYDER ' 12.

MR FISH 1912, I'msorry. Thank you.

MEMBER KRYDER: | was there.

MR FISH | would say that the concern of
the County is, is that just speaking specifically about
building a line and putting it up is that making sure
that that's done correctly. |It's kind of |ike the
chicken and the egg, if you're like -- to Menber
Di Ciccio' s point, why are you conm ng and asking for a
transm ssion |line before you' ve received perm ssion to
build a project.

The County just wants to make sure that
things are done right, that holes aren't |eft open, that
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transm ssion lines are conpleted, that sort of thing.
That's the biggest concern for the County, for ny
depart nent anyway.

MEMBER KRYDER: | used to raise chickens,
and |'m not sure which did conme first.

MR FISH  That's a whol e phil osophi cal
debate we coul d have.

MEMBER KRYDER: But, in fact, the easy way
when you' ve got three pieces, as | understand, not before
us, but in this norass in which we're playing, this
sandbox, one piece is the gen-tie line, that's what we
have jurisdiction over.

If you wanted to either have it go or have
it stop, have all three pieces go or have all three
pi eces stopped, the sinplest way would be to find one
pi ece and sinply say this dog don't hunt, this one ain't
goi ng to work.

And so sit on that and ask for stuff little
by little by little. [I'mnot telling you anything, and I
know you know the rules. But for our purposes, we are
here this afternoon to tal k about the gen-tie |ine.

And | have heard you establish that it is
your intent at |least to see Apache County woul d probably
not be adding conditions to whatever the applicant has to
sign as their contract to make the | eases wth the
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Ari zona | and pi ece.

So if we could separate the cookie, break
t he egg, use the anal ogy ali ke, we could approve our
pi ece and get out of your hair and the applicant's hair
and let y'all fight it out.

And that would help ne begin to understand

the concerns that Menber Di G ccio has, and that is, why

are we here today? Wy don't -- why aren't these pieces
all applied for all at one tine? 1'll stop and |isten
unl ess you want to tal k about cookies or eggs, | don't
know.

MR FISH | have no further comment. Sone

of the concerns of the County would just be the basics,
set backs, buil ding codes, road conditions, fencing,

et cetera, those -- those are the things that the County,
you know, the details of the project that the County gets
i nvol ved i n.

So yes, back to -- back to Menber HIl's
point, | mean, we could have that debate how this should
be done |l ater on down the road, and -- but specifically
back to ny point, we are not trying to override your
authority, to override the Arizona Corporation Conm ssion
on this. But also, to ny point, to date, we have not had
anything at the County to evaluate fromthe applicant.

MEMBER KRYDER: One | ast comment and
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question, then, fromyou, is | may have heard it earlier
and didn't fully understand it, so I'mgoing to ask it
for the record.

|s the County only going to consider al
t hree pieces as a package? That is the solar portion,
the wind portion and the gen-tie line, or is the
applicant able to address you with three different
applications?

MR FISH In ny discussions that the
departnent had with the applicant, it has been deci ded
that the applicant would turn in a separate conditional
use for the wind project, and a separate application for
the sol ar project.

Hypot hetically -- | nean, conmbn sense says
that in one of those applications we would al so consi der
the gen-tie line in that process.

MEMBER KRYDER: But you didn't ask for a
gen-tie |line application per se.

MR. FISH.  Qur ordinance basically says the
project, with all the infrastructure included with it, so
fromthe County's standpoint we're | ooking at the project
as a whole with the gen-tie line included.

MEMBER KRYDER: And the substations.

MR, FISH  And the substations, yes, sir.

MEMBER KRYDER  Thank you. That's
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clarifying.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Fant ?

MEMBER FANT: Thank you, M. Chair.

CHWN STAFFORD: |Is that thing on?

MEMBER FANT: Yes, it is now Thank you,
M. Chair.

First, I want to thank the Apache County
| eadership for being here today, making the effort to
cone all the way down to Phoeni x. Appreciate it, because
it helps to have you here.

When | listened to the public comments this
norni ng from people, | heard anger and fear, and | think
those are indications to ne they're concerned that what
they -- fromwhat their perspectives are, and what they
think they're not being heard. M question, and |I' m not
famliar with Apache County processes, are there -- are
t here places and ways that the folks in Springerville and
Eagar and Vernon and Li nden, the other places around the
val |l ey, can participate and get heard?

MR FISH  Ch, absolutely. The applicant
has been -- they have had many public neetings to let the
public comment. As the director of planning and zoni ng,
one of ny jobs is to sit in on working sessions and
pl anni ng and zoni ng neeti ngs every nonth.

For the nost part, we have had soneone
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there at least listening to see if there's anything

di scussed renewabl e energy, and if there is typically
anyt hing on the public agenda, we definitely have people
commenti ng on that.

You know, social nedia, it's a small
community of tight-knit famlies, so typically people
have access to ne directly, people have access to our
comm ssioners directly or to our board nmenbers directly,
so yes, there is opportunity for the public to conmment.

MEMBER FANT: Ckay. Thank you. Thank you,
Sir.

CHWN STAFFORD:. Menber Hi I ?

MEMBER HI LL: Thanks, M. Chair. Do you
have ot her Special Use Permts for electricity generation
in process now that you're actually revi ewi ng?

MR FISH W just conpleted one. The
Board of Supervisors approved a | arge solar project in
Decenber. And then there is at | east one, probably two
nore |large wind and solar projects, wnd project and
sol ar project, and then possibly just a singular solar
project from several other conpani es.

MEMBER HI LL: But they're not at a
permtting process yet with you guys yet, a Special Use
Permt?

MR. FISH  They're about at the sane
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process as the applicant is.

MEMBER HI LL: Ckay. Do you know if we've
seen any of then?

MR FISH: Again, no, we have not had any
conpl eted Conditional Use Permts turned in fromthree of
the four that I"'mreferring to.

MEMBER HI LL: Ckay. That's helpful. |
just kind of wanted to know the vol une you guys were
dealing with and trying to change the process at the sane
time. So that's helpful. Thanks.

MR FISH W |ove to punish ourselves in
Apache County.

MEMBER HI LL: Pinal County is doing a | ot

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Any other
questions from nenbers?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFORD: M. Derstine, do you have
any questions for this wtness?

MR. DERSTINE: | do. Thank you.

EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q M. Fish, again, thank you for being here, and
ny apol ogies, we don't -- it's going to be tough to nmake
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eye contact.

A (MR FISH) Let's see if we can get around the
col um.

Q Yeah, around this -- around this -- so I'll | ook
at the screen, and | don't know if you can see ne on a
noni t or sonmewhere, but hopefully you can hear nme. Can
you hear ne okay?

A (MR FISH) Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. I'ma little curious, if you can give ne
sonme background. You're the director of community
devel opnent for Apache County. How |ong have you held
that position?

A (MR FISH) March 15th wll be five years.

Q All right. | know by statute the Pl anni ng and
Zoning Commi ssion is created by 11, | think it's 802, the
sane statute that you cited in your -- in your letter.

MEMBER KRYDER: Matthew, you're in and out
of your m crophone.

VMR. DERSTI NE: Let ne make sure this is

right on me. GCkay. Good. | appreciate the rem nder.
Q | see how the Planning and Zoni ng Conm ssion is
created. | don't see anything in the statute about this

communi ty devel opnent office. Can you explain
what -- what creates the comunity devel opnent office and
where does the authority cone fronf
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A (MR FISH) Specifically to the Planning and
Zoni ng Conmm ssi on, Apache County is slightly different.
We only have three comm ssioners, so they appoint three
menbers of the Planning and Zoni ng Conm ssion, with an
alternate, so we have 10 total

Specifically speaking to the Planning and Zoni ng
Comm ssion and how they relate to the conditional use --
or to the community devel opnent departnent, ny departnent
wi Il prepare conditional use and present it to the
Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Conmi ssi on.

Q Ckay. So you kind of act as the office that
accepts the Conditional Use Permt application and then
packages it and presents it to the Planni ng and Zoni ng
Comm ssion, and | assune then you play a simlar role in
presenting the Pl anning and Zoni ng Comm ssi on's deci si on
to the Board of Supervisors; is that right?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q And the Board of Supervisors is the statutory
entity that has jurisdiction over planning and zoni ng
deci sions wthin Apache County and any county of the
state, right?

A (MR FISH) Yes.

Q Ckay. Wio do you report to as the director of
communi ty devel opnent? Wo is your boss?

A (MR FI SH) County nmnager.
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Q Ckay. Apache County didn't intervene in our
siting case, correct?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q Oiginally. But you then waited until the day
of the open neeting after this commttee had held its
heari ngs, issued a CEC, and that CEC was up for
consi deration by the Conmm ssion, you waited until that
date, Decenber 3rd, to send in your letter, right?

A (MR FISH) VYes.

Q What pronpted you to send in that letter?

A (MR FISH) Again, as we've discussed, the
overal | decision process, the County felt |ike they
wanted to be involved in that decision.

Q The County wanted to be involved in the decision
as to whether or not the Comm ssion granted a CEC for the
gen-tie line, which you' ve indicated you really have no
real issue with?

(MR FISH) Was that a question or a statenent?

It's a question.

> O >

(MR FISH) Please -- please repeat it.

Q You' re saying that the County wanted to be
i nvol ved but you've testified here today that the County
has no input or direction or additions to the CEC, so
what is the input that you're | ooking to have into the
CEC process?
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A (MR FISH) The County wanted to be recognized to
say, hey, fromny point of view, as the director, we
wanted to have the opportunity to say through the overal
process, the conditional use process, you should cone to
the County first for a conditional use application and
then apply for the gen-tie |line.

Q Is there anything in Apache County ordi nances
that require that an applicant for a Conditional Use
Permt first apply for the Conditional Use Permt before
obtaining a CEC for the gen-tie -- for its gen-tie line?

A (MR FISH) No.

Q And, in fact, at least in this npst recent case
and |'msure in other cases, applicants have obtai ned
CECs for their gen-tie |line before applying for a CUP for
their project, correct?

A (MR FISH | amnot absolutely positive about
that, | don't know.

Q You' re famliar wwth the -- well, you nentioned
this case, that you just ruled on a CUP application in
Decenber, right?

A (MR FISH That the Board of Supervisors ruled
on in Decenber?

Q Correct.

A (MR FISH) Yes, | believe we're referring to the
Juni per Spring Project.
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Q That's right, Juniper Springs filed its CEC
application for its gen-tie |line on January 24, 2025, are
you aware of that?

A (MR FISH | was not.

Q The siting committee held hearings on the
application on March 10 and 11, 2025, are you aware of
t hat ?

A (MR FISH) |I'mnot aware of that.

Q But the County woul d have been notified of those
proceedi ngs as an affected jurisdiction, right?

A (MR FISH | would assune so, yes.

Q And Juni per Springs submtted its CUP
application on April the 9th, 2025; does that sound
ri ght?

A (MR FISH | know it was |ast spring.

Q And t he Conm ssion approved the CEC for the
Juni per Springs Solar and Storage Project on April 29,
2025. Were you aware of that?

A (MR FISH) | was not.

Q And your CUP for the Juni per Springs Solar and
St orage Proj ect was approved with conditions by the Board
of Supervisors on Decenber 2, 2025, eight nonths after

t he CEC was approved by the Comm ssion. Are you aware of

t hat ?
A (MR FISH) Yes. Wll, | was aware that they did
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approve it on -- on Decenber 2nd.

Q And so in that particular case, and |I'm sure
there are others, that applicant obtained a CEC for its
gen-tie line before filing its CUP application with the
County, right?

A (MR FISH) It would appear so, yes.

Q And yet in this case, you submtted a letter to
t he Conm ssion requesting that the Conm ssion deny the
CEC application until this applicant had processed its
CUP application, but you didn't require that of Juniper
Springs?

A (MR FISH) As stated earlier, | was not aware
that they applied earlier.

Q Wel |, Juniper Spring, their CUP application
references the gen-tie line, as well as the approved CEC

that determ nes the | ocation of the gen-tie line, does it

not ?
A (MR FISH) | don't know.
Q Ckay.
A (MR FISH) | couldn't speak specifically.
Q So do you, as the director of the devel opnment

office, get to decide what applicants are going to be
required to cone in for a CUP before they apply for their
CEC? Is this sonething -- is this a personal decision on
your part?
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A (MR FI SH) No.

Q Who gets to decide -- who should decide that?

A (MR FISH) Again, we're getting into opinion
here. M opinion is that the applicant should apply for
a Conditional Use Pernmit before they apply for a line
siting permt.

Q But there's no requirenent under the Apache
County zoning ordinance to that effect, right?

A (MR FISH There is not.

Q And you haven't nade that request, at |least with
regard to Juni per Springs or any other CUP application?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q ' m | ooking at your letter, which is narked as
CG48. |1'mlooking at the second paragraph on the first
page of your letter, it says, "It is the position of

Apache County Community Devel opnent that these applicants
should first seek and obtain a recommendati on fromthe
Apache County Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Conm ssi on and
subsequent approval of a Conditional Use Permt by the
Apache County Board of Supervisors prior to pursuing
approval fromthe Arizona Corporation Comm ssion for the
construction of the proposed gen-tie line."
Dd | read that right?
A (MR FISH) Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. And what |'mnoting here is that you're
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saying "applicants should,” which neans they're not
required to, right?

A (MR FISH) Again, no, they're not required.

Q Ckay. And this is the position of Apache County
communi ty devel opnent, it's not the position of Apache
County?

A (MR FISH) Correct. |It's the position of the
Apache County community devel opnent director

Q And it's not the position of the Board of
Supervi sors, correct?

A (MR FISH | would not begin to speak for the
Board of Supervisors.

Q |'d like you to take a | ook at the second page
of your Decenber 3rd letter, that's CG48. There's a
par agraph there that starts, "Therefore, in the interest
of proper |and use oversight, intergovernnenta
coordi nation, and conpliance with Arizona |aw, | request
that the Arizona Corporation Conm ssion deny the
application submtted by CG Apache County Sol ar, LLC, and
CG Apache County Wnd, LLC, until such tinme as applicants
have applied for and received Conditional Use Permt
approval fromthe Apache County Board of Supervisors.™

Dd | read that correctly?
A (MR FISH) Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. So when this paragraph reads: "In the
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I nterest of proper |and use oversight,” | nentioned you
were here and | nentioned in ny opening that no deci sion
by this conmittee, and ultimately the Conmm ssi on,
concerning the CEC for the gen-tie |line doesn't divest
Apache County fromits zoning authority.
You agree with that, correct?

A (MR FISH) Yes.

Q And then your -- your next parenthetical is:
“"In the interest of intergovernnental coordination,”
You' re not necessarily coordinating with the Conm ssi on,
you're telling themnot to grant the CEC which was
approved by this comm ttee because you personally are
asking themto wait, right?

A (MR FISH) Correct. I'mnot telling them |'m
asking them

Q Ri ght. But you' re asking them on behal f of your
office without authorization fromthe Board of
Supervi sors, right?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q Your paragraph here goes on to state: "I,"
that's M. Fish, "respectfully request that the
Cor poration Conmm ssion deny the application submtted by
CG Apache County Sol ar and CG Apache County Wnd."
Again, are you in the practice of sending letters to the
Cor porati on Conmm ssion, on behalf of your office and your
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office alone, and asking that the Comm ssion not grant a
CEC? You've never done that before, right?

A (MR FISH This is the first time |I've ever done
that, yes, sir.

Q And i s that because you oppose these projects?

A (MR FISH) No, it's because, again, back to
Menber DiCiccio's point, why ask for the line site if
you're not going to get a Conditional Use Permt first?
It just nmakes reason stare, cone, ask for the Conditional
Use Permt, and then get the line site.

Q Well, | think, as other nenbers of this
comm ttee have pointed out, that is not the practice of
many ot her applicants, i1ncluding the Juni per Springs
entity that applied for a CUP after it obtained a CEC
fromthis commttee, right?

A (MR FISH | amnot disputing that, yes.

Q So, M. Fish, no one directed you to send your
| etter of Decenber 37

A (MR FI SH) No.

Q You just took the initiative to do that on your
own?

A (MR FISH | did.

Q And you did so without requesting approval from
t he Board of Supervisors?

A (MR FISH) VYes.
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Q And you' ve nade clear that you don't speak on
behal f of the County, you' re speaking only on behal f of
communi ty devel opnent ?

A (MR FISH) VYes.

Q Did you obtain approval from your boss, the
County nmanager, to send your letter of Decenber 3?

A (MR FISH) | did not. And, in fact, he was
quite mad at ne for doing it.

Q Wiy was he nad at you?

A (MR FISH) Because | didn't obtain perm ssion
first.

MR. DERSTINE: | have no further questions.
CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.
Menber Di G ccio, you have a question?

VMEMBER Di Cl CCl O | have a few

FURTHER EXAMI NATI ON

MEMBER DICICCOIG  So all zoning rules are
basically the sane. | nean, how people, when they cone
in, they know the rules, they see them they see themin
writing, they know what they are, they're zoni ng code.
But not all zoning cases are exactly the sane, are they.

MR FISH | would say no.

MEMBER DICICCIG  No, and if they're
controversial, don't they take a higher |evel of
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scrutiny?

MR. FISH  Common sense would say that, say
yes.

MEMBER DiCICCI O They do. And |I've dealt
wth this. So -- and going to the Gty nanager, do you
run every single decision by, let's say a permt for a
hot water heater cones through. Do you ask the Gty
manager for perm ssion to allow that to happen?

MR FI SH: No.

MEMBER DiCICCI GO Exactly. So you do, when
sone cases take certain levels of interest on certain
points -- so at the end of the day, the reason,
beli eve, and you can answer -- ask why, | can ask why,
but | believe it's because, having worked in | ocal
governnent, things raise to a certain level, and then it
creates nore scrutiny. It creates nore involvenent. So
maki ng a request and asking for themto turn in a
Conditional Use Permt would be very normal for a County
to do, or any governnmental entity, because you now want
to see the entire project inits entirety, correct?

MR FISH: Yes.

MEMBER DICICCIO So wanting to see it in
its entirety is not an unreasonabl e request, | don't
bel i eve, do you?

MR FI SH: No.
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MEMBER DICICCIO And then let's take
Navaj o County. You have a close relationship with Navajo
County, you don't have any jurisdiction over Navajo
County, do you?

MR FI SH: No.

MEMBER Di CI CCI G  But when you call and ask
t hem perm ssion or ask themto get involved in sone of

t he deci sions, what do they do, they work with you,

correct?

MR FISH: Hypothetically, yes.

MEMBER DiCICCI QO Yes. And so when | was
at the Gty of Phoenix, | was an elected official there,

we had cases in the county, the County Board of

Supervi sors would call ne and say, "Hey, Sal, we've got
this case over here, can you get involved in it?" That's
not unusual at all, that's a day-to-day practice,
correct?

MR. FISH  Anmongst elected officials, |
woul d said yes.

MEMBER DICICCOI G Very nuch so. On a very
regul ar basis, actually.

So fromny end of it, this just reached a
certain level of scrutiny, a certain | evel of interest
fromthe public, and the elected officials and others
made a decision to raise the level of interest in this.
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And | think that's very normal. And that doesn't happen
on every case.

Like | said, in a hot water heater, you're
not going to ask for that, you re not going to expect
that | evel of controversy. But on cases like this, once
they reach that | evel of scrutiny, then that's when they
get involved. That's nore of a kind of statenent. Thank
you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you.

MR DERSTINE: Can | have one redirect or
recross?

CHWN STAFFORD: Pl ease.

FURTHER EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Fish, prior to sending your |etter of
Decenber 3, did you ever request that the applicant
submt a CUP application before proceeding with their CEC
application in process?

A (MR, FI SH) No.

MR, DERSTI NE: Thank you.

CHW STAFFORD: M. Resare, do you have any
questions for this w tness?

MR. RESARE: Yes, please. Just a few,
M. Chair man.
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EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR RESARE:

Q When you get additional or new information in
your line of work, does that change how you do things?

A (MR FISH) Yeah, it could.

Q You don't do the exact same thing every single
time, just because that's how you did it before
regardl ess of the infornmation you' ve received?

A (MR FISH) No.

Q All right. So you stated already today that
with Juni per Springs you didn't know about this commttee
or didn't know what was going on in regards to that; is
that correct?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q And i nformati on changed, you learned a little
bit nore since then, and that's one of the reasons why
you sent this letter; is that correct?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

Q So you' re capabl e of changi ng and becom ng a
better person in regards to how you do your job?

A (MR FISH) | would hope so, yes.

Q And | think some of the folks on this committee
al so nentioned how this process can be a little bit
confusi ng on how and when things cone in, is that
sonet hing you' ve al so noticed as wel | ?
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A (MR FISH) | think it's pretty clear fromthe
testinmony fromthe public that it is very confusing, yes.
MR RESARE: Thank you, no further
questi ons from us.
CHWN STAFFORD: M. Anable, do you have any
questions for this wtness?

MR. ANABLE: Yes, thank you, M. Chairnan

EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR ANABLE:
Q | " m t hinking back on past beatings |I took in the
public square. And is there a --
CHWN STAFFORD: C oser to the m crophone,
pl ease. Some of the nenbers are having troubl e hearing
you.
MR ANABLE: I'msorry. |Is this on?
MEMBER KRYDER  Thank you, Chairnan.
BY MR ANABLE:
Q Otentines in the past, | recall being irritated
when, for exanple, | was in charge of an agency, and
bef ore an applicant had cone to the agency they had gone
over here to a politico or to the County and sold them on
sonme great deal.
And then I'"'mthe |ast one to hear about it. And
so it's one of those things where you' re surprised and
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al so the applicant or potential applicant now has a cl ub,
meaning if they get the CEC before you even have a chance
to think about it, does that create a difficulty for you
going forward in the process? Meaning they're going to
hold that a hit up above and say we have this, you can't
deny us now, essentially?

A (MR FISH) It could, absolutely.

(Cross-tal k.)
BY MR ANABLE

Q |"mjust trying to put nyself in your shoes and
under st and what m ght have notivated you to do this. It
sounded |i ke you were surprised that this was so far
ahead of where you thought they m ght be, and is that a
correct statenent?

A (MR FISH Gven the nature of county
menber shi ps or county -- nenbers of the county, given the
ani nosity towards the applicant at that point in tinme, |
just thought it would be prudent that they would cone in
and ask for a Conditional Use Permt or perm ssion to ask
for a Conditional Use Permt before they applied for the
transm ssion |ine.

Q | remenber hearing you say that before.

A (MR FISH That would give the opportunity of
the public to weigh in on the application and all of
t hat .
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Q Correct. And also would see, a little strange
to permt a power line that doesn't have a project,
right, so you'd rather nerge the two together?

A (MR FISH) Correct.

MR ANABLE: | get it. | have no other
questi ons.

CHWN STAFFORD: Thank you. Any ot her
questions from nenbers?

MEMBER HI LL: Yeah.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Hill?

FURTHER EXAMI NATI ON
MEMBER HI LL: G ven your new thinking on
applying for the Conditional Use Permt before the CEC,

is this sonething that you have contenplated in

redevel opi ng your Conditional Use Permt processes, like
have you guys al ready tal ked about changing -- we tal ked
about -- your attorney tal ked about i nproving processes.

Is this sonething that you guys have actively been
tal ki ng about and m ght be part of a future Conditional
Use Permt process?

MR FISH: Absolutely.

MEMBER HI LL: That would be hel pful to
know.

MR FISH It's something | have tal ked
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about. W have tal ked about on the planning and zoni ng
|l evel s with our attorneys and also with other applicants.

MEMBER HI LL: Ckay. That's good to know.
Thanks.

CHWN STAFFORD: Any further questions for
this w tness?

MR. DERSTINE: Wth your perm ssion, | just
have one that occurred to ne from Menber H Il's question.

CHWN STAFFORD: Pl ease.

FURTHER EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q | guess |I'm confused by how waiting, forcing an
applicant to wait to obtain their CEC for the
transm ssion |ine hel ps your process, given that until an
appli cant has a CEC, which defines where their gen-tie
line will be placed, the corridor, the route, if they
submt a Conditional Use Permt application, and guess as
to what m ght be approved for the | ocation of the
transm ssion |ine, you may approve whatever you approve
and then ultimately that's changed by the siting
commttee.
And so the -- the order of operation that you're
advocating for nakes no sense to nme, given that if we
have to wait to go through the conditional use process
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and then obtain a CEC, and your process establishes a
different |location for the project, that puts the
applicant in a very difficult spot?

A (MR FISH On the other side of that, it would
be a | ot easier for this commttee or the Arizona
Cor poration Conm ssion to nmake a decision if the
applicant had al ready been approved for a Conditional Use
Permt for the project and the gen-tie |line.

Q But if your Conditional Use Permt defines and
descri bes where the gen-tie line is placed, that could be
very different than what this commttee ultimtely
decides as to the | ocation of that project?

A (MR FISH) To date | would say that ny Pl anning
and Zoni ng Conmi ssi on and ny departnment has never
dictated to an applicant as to specifically where they
have to put things. It has always been a conversation of
themcomng to us and saying this is our study area, this
is the area we've narrowed it down to, this is where we
would like to do it.

Q And t hen --

A (MR FISH W' ve never disputed that.

Q And that would indicate to ne that then there is
no problemw th having this commttee i ssue a CEC that
defines where that transmssion line will go, ahead of
your CUP process because you never interfere with
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what ever the applicant is asking for, right?

A (MR FISH W do not tell themwhere it shoul d
go.

Q Ri ght .

A (MR FISH W could put conditions on that, but
we woul d never tell themspecifically where it needs to
be. |1 -- as a planning and zone -- or as a comunity
devel opnent director | wouldn't begin to think that I
know better than nmen and wonen that do this for a living.

Q Well, that nay be true for you, but the nenbers
of this commttee oftentines decide they do know better
and decide where a line wll be placed and the | ocation
and the route, and therefore, the idea that an appli cant
may have as to the routing of a particular line and they
present that, they're forced to present that to you, nay
change when we get before this commttee. And,
therefore, | think it nmakes entire sense, and it's
practical and what nost applicants do is obtain a CEC for
their line, and then submt their CUP application to
obtai n zoni ng approval, especially given that you don't
interfere with that decision.

That's all | have?
CHWN STAFFORD: That's nore of a conment
t han a questi on.
MR DERSTINE: Yes, it was.
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MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairnman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | have a comment al ong the
i nes of that comrent.

| would tend to agree with M. Derstine's
thinking if all we're doing is considering a transm ssion
line. However, when we are considering a gen-tie, we are
put somewhat in the position that you have just descri bed
you not wanting to be inif the roles -- if the direction
of authorization is reversed fromwhat it has been.

What if we approve a transmi ssion |line and
the Conditional Use Permt relocates the substation?
There are tines when | would very nuch |ike to have at
| east seen the Conditional Use Permt process
in -- ongoing at the sane tinme, so we have sone sense of
what we're actually dealing with. Thank you

CHWN STAFFCORD: Thank you, Menber Little.

Any ot her questions from nenbers for this
W t ness?

(No response.)

CHWN STAFFCORD: Any ot her questions from
the parties?

MR, RESARE: No.

CHWN STAFFORD: M. Anabl e, any additional
questions?
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MR. ANABLE: The grilling of M. Fish can
st op.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. M. Derstine,
you' re done questioning this wtness, are you not?

MR. DERSTI NE: | am

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Wth that, this
witness i s excused. You do not need to return tonorrow.
M. Resare, you will be here tonorrow because you're
representing the County as a party in this matter,
correct?

MR RESARE: | will be, yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: And do you know if the
supervisors plan to attend and observe tonorrow as wel | ?

MR RESARE: | can check with themreal
qui ck.

CHWN STAFFORD: The other thing is if they
are not --

MR, RESARE: | have three head shakes, so |
think three yeses.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. |If the supervisors
woul d i ke to make public coment, we can allow themto
do that at this tine.

MR RESARE: Let nme check with them give
me one m nute.

We have one nenber of the board that w shes
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to speak today, and if the option for tonorrowis
avai |l abl e tonorrow for another, then perhaps one wll do
it tonmorrow, if that's avail able then

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, it will be avail abl e.
My concern was that they've driven here from Apache
County, | didn't want themto have to linger here in
Mari copa County | onger than they wanted to.

MR RESARE: And I'll just -- naybe we can
put himright here, so everybody can see him

MR DAVIS: GCood afternoon, ny nane is
Nel son Davis. | sit on the Board of Supervisors for
Apache County. I'min nmy second term |[|I'ma
si xt h-generati on resi dent of Apache County, farm ng and
ranching was ny famly. | have a |love for this county,
don't plan on goi ng anywhere, so |I'mpretty active and
sol d on our county.

|'"'mnot going to take a lot of tinme, but I
do just want to say that the reason we are here and you
m ght be wondering why we are to this point right now,
but nobody had applied to the County for anything, no
permts, so we're sitting up there eating enchil adas and
tacos and we hear that, hey, they're down in front of the
Line Siting Conmttee arguing for sonething they' re going
to put in your county.

And then we start hearing where i s Apache
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County on this? Wy are they not here representing

t hensel ves? Well, nobody's applied to us, and we're not
in the habit of interfering with your boards unless we're
invited or there's been sonething applied to on our
behalf. 1In this case there was not.

Wien we did learn that -- the statenent was
that Lava Run, Repsol, does not believe that they need to
talk to Apache County for a permt to build this project,
I'm like, well, | understand the |laws of the gen-tie
line, but there's a lot of things that go in besides, you
know, it's a physical -- it's not just the line, it's
buildings, it's -- it crosses roads, there's ani nals,
there's a | ot of physical things involved.

And to say that we don't have jurisdiction,
we have setbacks, we have a lot of things we control on
that that we woul d again not nandate, but be at the
hearing to give you our side of what's inportant, not to
add onto the State Land Departnent, you know, that was
I nteresting what was brought up today about the Land
Departnent, assumng all liability on reclamation and
stuff like that. And I'mgoing to dive into that when
get sone tine. Because that was interesting.

But that's all we ask for is that for two
years we have been listening to the Lava Run Project, it
Is very, very -- |'ve been to neetings and |I'm ki nd of,
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again, mxing up the gen-tie line and this whol e thing,
but they're all kind of tied together. Wen we have
meetings that were held in Springerville with 450 people
in attendance, and nobody in favor of, and sane wi th nost
of the other neetings | go to, it's very volatile and
we're arguing about this and we just want to be at the
table to protect the people in ny county. As Board of
Supervi sors we were, by statute, given the authority to
protect the people in ny county.

And nowhere in it did it say that the State
woul d renove that responsibility fromne as a supervisor
protecting the safety and well -being of the citizens of
ny county. So I'mgoing to stand up and fight for that,

t hat when we make -- do sonething in our county, we need
to have a voice as supervisors in that, and so | just
want to say, | appreciate everything you do. This is one
of those decisions that we're going to be making that
usually it's 50/50 and you can nake a decision, make it,
this is one of these that's going to be tough on
everybody going through this process. | just want to say
t hank you for all of what you guys do and giving ne two
mnutes to talk to you. So thank you.

CHWN STAFFCORD: Thank you. All right.

Well, it is getting late in the day, M. Derstine, about
how much | onger do you anticipate your direct case to
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| ast ?

MR. DERSTINE: W have very little, | think
t hrough the testinony of M. Casteel as well as --

THE REPORTER: M crophone.

MR DERSTINE: Turned it off. M
apol ogi es.

| think through the testinony of
M. Casteel that you've already heard, as well as the
testinmony of M. Fish, | think it covers and confirns all
of the issues that the Conm ssion directed us to cone
back and consider. That is |and use, existing |and use,
as well as planned |land use. | think M. Fish has nade
pretty clear for the record in terns of what the County
does or does not have jurisdiction over.

And so | don't know that we have mnuch,
maybe at the break we'll decide there's a little bit of
cl eanup, but | do know that | think nenbers of the
commttee, |like Menber Little and others, may have
specific questions that they heard from nenbers of the
publi c.

W' Il be happy to address those whenever
you want to raise themwith us, but I don't know that we
have much nore to put on concerning the |and use and,
yeah, | and use, information that the Conmm ssion told us
to cone back and address.
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You' ve heard fromthe County, we appreciate
t hem bei ng here, we appreciate M. Fish being here to
explain his letter, what authority he had for it or
didn't have for it, and what the purpose of the letter
was. And beyond that, | think that addresses the open
I ssues, but again, we're happy to answer questions from
comm ttee nenbers.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairnman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | believe that, unless |
fell asleep, we interrupted M. Casteel's discussion of
the community plans and the general plans, and |
certainly would like to have himfinish that up. | don't
know how long it wll take, but |I would Iike to have you
conti nue that. Thank you.

MR CASTEEL: It wll only take a m nute or
so.

CHWN STAFFORD: You want to get a little

close to the m crophone, M. Casteel.

DI RECT EXAMI NATI ON/(Cont.)
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q Pull up the slide deck
A (MR CASTEEL) There we go. There's only a few
slides here. W were going to cover planned | and use and
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this is consistent with what we covered at the siting
hearing, that the planned | and use in the study area was
conti nued grazing and the provisions for |ower and higher
density, especially along highways and in the western end
of the project.

The County identifies three character areas in
the study area, those character areas, let ne switch this
slide, there's three character areas, one is -- just a
m nute, the range |l and, which is the majority of the
study area, it's continued grazing and cattle ranching.
There is the rural edge, which is located along U. S. 180
that is proposed for |ower residential density
devel opnent.

And then there is the Comunity Village on the
west end of the study area, Community Village is nore of
a mxed use with industrial, institutional, commercial,
residential. But what is not shown on this plan is the
Vernon Area Community Plan. And using the map, the
Vernon Area Community Plan is |arge, but the boundary
t hat encroaches upon the study area would be just past
US. 60 on the very, very west end of the study area
where the interconnection project crosses U S. 60, so the
Vernon Area Conmmunity Plan is 300 square mles or 192, 000
acres. |It's centered on the town of Vernon about 10
mles to the west.
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The project itself would encroach into that | ess
than 200 acres, so it's a very snall inpact, but the
Vernon Area Community Pl an has goals, objectives, and
those are primarily main residential and open space
characteristics.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman?

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Is that -- it's kind of
hard for nme to tell the colors, but is that a rural edge
section that kind of goes right down the m ddl e of
the --

MR. CASTEEL: Yes, it is on your placenat
as well, sorry about that.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ri ght .

MR CASTEEL: Yeah, it goes right down U S
180 and it's lowdensity residential planned al ong the
hi ghway.

MEMBER LI TTLE: And whose plan is that, is
t hat Vernon?

MR CASTEEL: So this is the -- so

everythi ng you see here is Apache County Conprehensive

Pl an.
MEMBER LI TTLE: Ch, okay.
MR. CASTEEL: They identify character areas
in our area, Vernon -- the Vernon Area Community Pl an,
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like | said, is large, it doesn't define character areas.
The Vernon Area Community Pl an, as you noted, was adopted
into the County's Conprehensive Plan, along with, there's
several, there's a few other smaller comunity plans that
are adopted into the County's Conprehensive Pl an.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

MR CASTEEL: And we've covered this.
was going to nove to just the general plans that are near
the study area. Specifically the Town of Eagar and the
Town of Springerville, the map you see on the screen is
anot her |l and use map, but it does identify the planning
boundari es of the Town of Springerville in green and then
the Town of Eagar in purple. Just for context, the
I nterconnection project is shown along with the one-mile
buffer around the transm ssion |line route.

The boundary of the town of Springerville's
CGeneral Plan is approximately three mles south of the
I nterconnection project and the town of Eagar is
approximately eight mles south of the interconnection
pr oj ect .

CHWN STAFFORD: And this map to which
you're referring is found on slide 29 of hearing Exhibit
CG 31, correct?

MR. CASTEEL: Correct.

Just briefly on planned | and use and pl ans
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i n devel opnent, as part of the CEC application in Exhibit
H of the CEC application, we sent letters to 24 different
jurisdictions and stakehol ders, but we did not receive
any planned devel opnments back. W requested that

i nformati on on planned devel opnent studies but there were
no devel opnents identified. And this is -- slide 31 is
an image of the letter and the map that was provided wth
that letter.

And this is, just in sunmary, this is the
end of the presentation. The project does not conflict
or preclude existing and future | and uses, including
ranchi ng, transportation, industrial, utilities or use of
t he Col orado Ri ver.

It does not conflict with the Apache County
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an, and it does not conflict with the
Town of Eagar or Springerville General Plans. And the
current zoning is applicable and it allows for the
I nt erconnection project and the public and utility
st akehol ders outreach did not identify any devel opnents
in the study area.

Just, in sumrmary, nothing has changed since
the line siting hearing regarding existing and future
| and use, and the record before the siting commttee
establishes that the interconnection project is
environnental ly conpatible with existing and pl anned | and
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uses.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Casteel, you nentioned that the Town of
Eagar's CGeneral Plan and the Town of Springerville's
CGeneral Plan do not apply. Can we go back to your map
and maybe you can explain why they don't apply. Is it
because they are well outside of the corridor for the
transm ssion |ine project?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. They're well outside of
t hose boundari es, several mles away in the Town of
Eagar's case, yes.

Q And those general plans, | guess, have
the -- carry the same weight as the Apache County
Compr ehensive Plan, and that is that, as noted in the
Apache County Conprehensive Plan, the plan is strictly
advisory in nature, it is not a regulatory docunent,
that's contained in the Apache County Conprehensive Pl an
on the first page at CG 42, and that sane
characterization applies to the Vernon Community Plan, as
well as the General Plans for Springerville and Eagar.

They're not -- they're advisory, they're not
regul atory docunents, they don't regul ate | and use,
correct?

A (MR CASTEEL) Correct.

So with that, that was the conclusion of the
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present ati on.

Q Can | circle back with you on one issue? You
spoke to, | think Menber Mercer at -- was follow ng up on
gquestions or concerns that nmenbers of the public had
rai sed on -- regarding the cultural surveys and the fact
that they had not yet been conpl et ed.

The commttee, | think, is well aware of the
i ncorporation of State H storic Preservation Ofice's
conditions into not only the CEC for this project, but
all the other CECs that are being granted by this
commttee.

And can you read fromthat condition or -- yeah
is there a requirenent that you conplete the cul tural
surveys before obtaining a CEC or is the timng
requi rement different?

A (MR CASTEEL) The CEC, the proposed -- sorry,

t he approved CEC has | anguage consistent with other CECs,
it's just that the cultural survey of the project
corridor should it be conpleted prior to construction.
That's Condition Nunber 7.

Q And that condition, then, also carries
provi si ons and | anguage on how you coordinate with the

State Historic Preservation Ofice concerning the final

Class Ill survey and requires input and | guess approval
from SHPO on the final results of the Cass IIl survey,
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ri ght?

A (MR CASTEEL) Correct. Yes.

Q And the CEC conditions, then, also place
obl i gati ons and requirenments on this applicant and any
appl i cant concerning how to handl e the di scovery of
artifacts or human remai ns, and how those issues are
handl ed again in line wth the requirenents of the State
H storic Preservation Ofice?

A (MR CASTEEL) Yes. The conditions adopted in
t he approved CEC, are those that are provided to the ACC
f rom SHPO.

Q Was there any foll owup, | guess, on a couple of
t he questions that Menber Mercer had raised? | think we
t al ked about those at the break.

M. Rieman, did you have anything you wanted to

address or expand on concerni ng any of those comments?

A (MR RIEMAN) M. Chairman, Menbers of the
Commttee, | believe there was a question regardi ng
whet her Tucson woul d benefit fromthe projects. And, in
fact, the service territory of the Salt R ver Project
al so encapsul ates the area where the proposed
jurisdictional project is |located, as well as other
potential utilities that could purchase the power from
the project that service Apache County.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 250 VOLUMEYV 02/09/2026 967

CHWN STAFFORD: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Who is the providing
electric utility in that area, like for Springerville and
Eagar? Is it Navopache or is it -- who is it? Does

anybody know?

MR. DERSTINE: | think Navopache provi des
sone -- has its service area that includes, say, Show Low
and ot her parts of the Wiite Mwuntains. | don't know

specifically as to, say, Springerville and Eagar, but |
do believe that SRP al so has service and custoners in
that area, but specifically |I don't know how -- | haven't
seen the service territory map for these vari ous custoner
serving utilities.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

CHWN STAFFORD: Seens |i ke sonething you
could research and follow up with us tonorrow.

MR DERSTINE: Happy to do that.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: And | guess the point that
was bei ng nmade was that where we are in this process they
have -- we have not entered into a Power Purchase
Agreenent with any particular offtaker. That has yet to
be worked out, waiting for not only TEP to issue its RFP
for new generation projects, but SRPis | think in the
early stages or about to release its RFP, so those sorts
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of offtaker commtnents and deciding who will contract
for the generation fromthe w nd and/or the sol ar
project, you know, has yet to be determ ned.

CHWN STAFFORD: | seemto recall testinony
on that subject in Cctober.

MR DERSTI NE: Correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: Menber Hill, did you have a
question?

MEMBER HILL: | just wanted to -- if
M. Fish is going to leave, | wanted to be able to say

t hank you for coming and talking with us. And hel pi ng us
under st and what your preferences are, what your policies
ar e.

| think every county does it differently,
and so it's always hel pful for us to know what different
counties are thinking. | also want to extend -- it would
be nice to find sone | eadership in county pl anni ng
organi zati ons to maybe work through this with soneone.

So that's all that | wanted to suggest, is
that | think we need sonme fixes and sone things that nake
t hings nore predictable for both the applicant and the
counties. And so to the extent that if you | eave after
this is done, after ex parte is conplete, it would be
great to have a conversation, so that's all | wanted to
say.
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MR. FISH  Thank you, ma'am Honestly, it
was a pleasure. | appreciate this very nuch.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman?

CHW STAFFORD:  Yes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ditto.

MEMBER HILL: Little and H Il are going to
fix it all.

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, it is now 4:45. I''m
inclined to recess for the day and cone back in the
nmorning at 10:00. The first thing we'll do is round out
t he exhibits that have been identified in the exhibit
list and then we'll proceed with the cross-exam nati on of
the applicant's wtnesses by the County and then by
M. Anable. You haven't -- the County has no w tnesses
to proffer?

MR RESARE: That is correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: And, M. Anable, you have

yet to hear if SHPO wi Il be naki ng soneone avail abl e?
MR. ANABLE: | have not heard back from
SHPO. | assune they are not going to send ne anybody.

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, then perhaps you can
get your questions answered fromthe applicant's
W t nesses who have interacted extensively with SHPO and
| believe there are sone docunents in the record from
SHPO in the records already that m ght be responsive
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to --

MR. ANABLE: If M. Derstine would bring
hi s archeol ogi st, that would be nost hel pful. | think
there are questions |'mdoubting M. Casteel can answer
that | want to ask about historic preservation.

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, M. Derstine has
already -- has already provided his wi tnesses. You'l
have to ask the questions of the witnesses that he's
provi di ng.

MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, it's ny --

CHWN STAFFORD: M. Derstine?

MR. DERSTINE: It's ny understanding,

M. Chairman, Comm ttee Menbers, and M. Anable, that

M. Casteel is actually very well versed in the SHPO
requi rements and how the cultural survey requirenents
that are incorporated into the CEC al ready, how those are
carried out. And, in fact, | think he has spent sone
time working for SHPO or at |least with the director for
SHPO

NR, CASTEEL: Ms. Leonard was at a previous
firml worked at for several years and we worked
extensively together, so |I've learned a | ot from nmany of
t he SHPO staff.

MR. DERSTINE: So while you're not an
archeol ogi st, you feel confortable in responding to
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questions from M. Anable on cultural survey issues
and/ or we can nmaybe get information if there's a
particul ar issue that you can't address, then we should
be able to contact your archeol ogi st with SWCA and have
that information.

MR. CASTEEL: Yeah, | can speak to what has
been done with the project and coordinate with the
applicant's archaeol ogi st, then we can speak to what we
have in Exhibit E as well.

MR DERSTINE: Al right. | think that's
t he best we can do.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Thank you. So
wth that, we will recess until tonorrow norning. W']I
reconvene at 10:00 a.m W stand in recess.

(The hearing recessed at 4:48 p.m)
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STATE OF ARl ZONA
COUNTY OF MARI COPA )

BE | T KNOM that the foregoing proceedi ngs were
t aken before ne; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of
the parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out cone her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethical
ations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and ACIA 7-206
)(g)(1) and (2). Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
day of February, 2026.

oblig
(J)(1
12t h

Wi Bk

ROBI N L. B. OSTERODE, RPR
CA CSR No. 7750
AZ CR No. 50695

* * * * *

| CERTIFY that d ennie Reporting Services, LLC,
has conplied with the ethical obligations set forth in
ACJIA 7-206(J)(1)(9g) (1) through (6).

s D

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC
Regi stered Reporting Firm
Arizona RRF No. R1035
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